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Chair’s Report

This is my second year as Chair of
Tenovus Cancer Care and, with more
people being diagnosed with cancer
every year and needing our help, it
remains a great privilege to be part of
this fantastic organisation. In what has
been a challenging year for the charity,
and the third sector as a whole, we
have continued to drive change, fund
research and support cancer patients
and their loved ones, making them the
centre of everything we do.

The last 12 months have certainly been a year of ’
transition. In May 2019, we were pleased to welcome
Judi Rhys, who Joined us as Chief Executive, replacing
Claudia McVie who retired after 12 successful years

of leading the charity. In just a short time with Judi

in tenure, we have certainly seen the benefits of

her experience, passion and dynamism in how we
continue to achieve our aims. We have also seen a
change in our Trustees; saying goodbye to some, while
welcoming the support, dedication and energy of a i
number of new faces. i
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Itis, and has always been our mission to bring help and support to cancer patients and their families.
In 2019 we expanded our fleet of Mobile Support Units with the launch of a fourth unit. These units
bring treatments closer to home and provide them in a more relaxed setting. And in Wales, over the
{ast 12 months, the units have delivered over 4,100 chemotherapy, immunotherapy and lymphoedema
treatments.

This year marked the ten year anniversary of our Sing with Us choirs and they continue to support
around 1,350 people affected by cancer every week. This year also saw us continuing our community
prevention programmes, along with our Activate Your Life emotional support service, with courses
being run across the country.

Our nurse-led Support Line was once again open every day this year and, through our proactive
Cancer Callback Service, we've seen our nurses handle over 3,600 outbound calls. In addition, and
desplte receiving a significant reduction in funding for this service, our Benefits and Debt Advice Team
provided financial support to over 2,700 people, securing over £4 million worth of benefits.

We have continued to fund innovative and ground-breaking cancer research and in 2019/20 we
Invested a further £320,000 in new research projects. | am also pleased to announce the launch of
our new policy manifesto 'More than Medicine: our ideas for the next Welsh Government'.
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We wiu use this manifesto to influence Government, so that the voice of peopue affected

by cancer is heard woud and ciear. I'm frequentiy astounded by the generosity, energy and
commitment we see from our vownteers, supporters and staff, and this year has certainyy been
no exception. None of our support services and research are possibie without the donations we
receive, and in 2019/20 we were ab.e to raise a fantastic sum; nearwy £8.7 miuion.

Despite the achievements we've seen in the wast 12 months, it has been a chauenging year. In
order to ensure the best use of funds, we undertook a strategic review in eany 2020, which has
subsequentiy seen some changes to the services and activities we provide. These changes are
designed to safeguard the financia. stabitity of the charity and ensure our donations are spent to
best effect.

As we're seeing with au orgamsatlons the COVID-{9 pandemic is having a significant impact on
the charity. Most of our fundraising events have been postponed or canceued, and our network
of 61 shops had to ciose from ate March. We've aiso had to make the difficuit decision to puace
the majority of our staff on furioughed eave. In addition, the pandemic has significanty affected
our research puans and our service deiivery, and it wiu continue to have an Impact on the charity
throughout the next financia. year.

These are unprecedented times, which are having an effect on us aw. However, { know this won't
stop us doing everything we can to hetp ensure that Tenovus Cancer Care brings hope and
support to cancer patients and their famities, both now and in the future.

Professor Malcolm Mason
Tenovus Cancer Care Chair of Trustees
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Trustees’ Report
(Incorporating Directors’ and Strategic Reports)

About Us

We are Tenowus Cancer Care. We know cancer tums iives upside down, but we can heyp. We bring
expert advice, emotionar support and iife-saving treatment to the heart of communities. We hewp cancer
patients and their 10ved ones cope, and our vita. research gives hope. We're Waies' ieading cancer
charity and we're here for everyone affected by cancer.

Cancer in context

Cancer is a giobau issue. The Worwd Heacth Organisation estimated that 9.6 miuion peopie died from
cancer in 2018, and that figure is set to rise. Cioser to home, in the /K and Waues, around 360,000
peopte and 19,000 respectively are diagnosed with cancer annuauy. Every year we're seeing more
peopee diagnosed, which can be iinked to increased awareness of the signs and symptoms, and better
diagnostic techniques.

But thankfuuy, due to eandler diagnosis and better treatment as a resuct of research, we are awso seelng
more peopie survive. The reaiity of this though, is that there are more and more peop:e iiving with and
beyond cancer, and the impact and effects of this can 1ast for years.

Our vision

Our vision Is a future where fewer peopie get cancer, and those that do have equa. access to the
best treatment and support.

Our mission

To bring practica. advice, emotionac support and treatment to where it matters most; the heart
of the community. We hewp peopie with cancer and their woved ones cope, and through our vitat
research, we offer hope.
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Our aims

To deliver our vision, we have agreed a set of five strategic aims for the organisation.
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To conduct and fund research to improve cancer outcomes and experiences.
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To develop a committed and engaged team that manage their resources effectively to support
our work, -

What we do

Communities are at the heart of everything we do, and working with and within them is an essential part
of delivering our strategic aims to help us achleve our vision. We're there at every stage of the cancer
journey to treat, care and support. We know that cancer affects patients and their families physically,

emotionally. financially and psychologically. Our services are free, and available to anyone who needs
them for as long as they are needed.

We're working towards a time where no one dles of cancer. We've funded research for over 50 years
because we know it's the key to Improving diagnosis, treatment and care. Our research is also finding
innovative ways to improve the lives of people living with cancer today.
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How we raised our money in 2019/20

Our income in 2019/20 was nearly £8.7m (2018/19: £9.6m). None of our life-
saving and life-changing work would be possible without the support of our
incredible supporters, fundraisers, volunteers and staff.

. Donations and Gifts
£1,099,377

O Grants and Investments
£293,317

O Retail and Other Trading Activities
£5,734,898

’ Legacies
£1,559,675

Total
£8,687,267

Legacies
This Is money that comes to us when someone kindly leaves a gift in their WilL

Retail and Other Trading Activities
This is money raised through our shops, our eBay channel, online shop, and other commercial
activitles.

Grants and Investments
This money comes from organisations such as trusts and foundations, and money earned

through our investments.

Donations and Gifts
Money raised through donations, fundraisers and events, our corporate supporters and
partners.

PO»O
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How we spent our money in 2019/20

Our expenditure in 2019/20 was nearly £9.8m (2018/19: £9.4m). We know how
hard our fundraisers, volunteers and supporters work to raise money, so
we're committed to making sure every single penny is spent wisely and well.
We're keeping focussed on reducing our costs, streamlining our resources
and working in partnership to avoid duplication, to make sure we have the
biggest impact possible with the money we have.

‘ Donations and Legacies . Patient Services
£1,323,136 £1,920,627
O Retail and Other Trading Activities O Support Groups
£4,859,520 : £624,363
O Grants to Research Organisations O Campaigns and Policy
£740,421 £313,173
Total

£9,781,240
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The people we help
Meet Amy and Jack

Amy and Jack were living in Australia when Jack was diagnosed with a brain tumour. After rétuming to the
UK to be closer to family, Jack suffered a stroke but had to wait two years befare receiving any financlal
support. Our Benefits Advisors were able to help them with the application process.

“We were living in Australia when Jack was diagnosed with a brain tumour back in 2016. He never usually
complained about aches and pains, but had been suffering with heart burn and testicle pain that he wanted
checked. The doctor thought he had testicular torsion and we were sent away with some tablets to ease the
pain.

“The pain continued over the next few weeks and one evening | found Jack on the bathroom floor. He'd
been sick, had a headache and was feeling sensitive to light. A scan revealed he had a brain tumour, but
we'd been so focused on the testicle pain that it hit us like a tonne of bricks.

“A few months after Jack's first surgery we found out | was pregnant with our little boy, Jaxon. it was a
surprise for us and at a difficult time, but we were determined to take it on and become parents, so we
moved back to the UK to have my mum and family around.

“After the move, Jack was being monitored by a new medical team in Cardiff who were walting for signs
that the tumour had started to grow before going ahead with another operation. His second surgery
resulted in a stroke that left him unable to speak and paralysed down his right side.

“Incredibly Jack had to be awake during these procedures. The medical team wanted to remove as much of
the tumour as possible each time so they asked him to respond while mapping out the affected area to
make sure they weren't taking away healthy brain tissue. Of course, there are always risks associated with
this kind of operation and it was sheer bad luck for us.

“I remember thinking when Jack was diagnosed and being tested that we were in the thick of it; that it
couldn’t possibly get any worse, | realise now that it wasn't the worst of it and this journey is about surviving
more and more difficulties. We're in a cycle of treatment, surgery and rehabilitation that restarts each time
the tumour grows.

“Some days are better than others. There are times [ just want to sit and cry to myself quietly, and others
where | know the importance of pulling myself up and getting on with it for our family. Jack’s biggest fear
was losing the ability to walk and talk; that's been so hard for us.

*Jack’s determination and focus has been amazing though. He was told that as soon as he could walk up
the stairs he could go home so he did it within seven days of having the stroke. But unfortunately, his life
expectancy has changed as the tumour has progressed, meaning he might not see Jaxon go to school. Iit's
heart breaking.

*Jack's unable to work and because we'd been living in Australia for three years, he wasn't entitled to
personal independence payments when we retumed to the UK. We tried to find help anywhere we could
within the system but were turned away and told to reapply after being here for two years.

“Jack was midway through radiotherapy treatment when we were able to apply again. By that point we
needed any help we could get and were lucky enough to be put in touch with a Tenovus Cancer Care
Benefits Advisor. They were able to tell us exactly what benefits and support we were entitled to.
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“The applications aren't easy; they're never straight forward and can be very time consuming. It was difficult
for me to focus on anything while Jack was going through treatment and | was taking care of Jaxan.
Tenovus Cancer Care took the weight off my shoulders, completing the applications with us or for us.

“Without their help we would have really struggled to make ends meet and live independently. Travelling for
. medical appointments five days a week, increased fuel costs and being at home more was heavily

impacting our lives and finances. We felt isolated for so long and we can't thank the Benefits Advice team
enough for their support.” :
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What we’ve achieved this year

2019/20 has been a year of change for Tenovus Cancer Care, with the arrival of our new Chief Executive
and several new Trustees, an increasingly challenging financial situation and, in the latter weeks of the
year, the arrival of COVID-19.

Our charitable work and focus remained largely unchanged for most of the 2019 calendar year. However,
at the start of 2020, against the backdrop of on-going financial challenges, we undertook a strategic review
of our services and research. We evaluated the way we support cancer patients and their loved ones so
that we were best placed to support as many people as possible in the future.

The result of this review identified that our community prevention work and emotional support service were
at risk of being discontinued. Our Welfare Benefits and Debt Advice Service was also considered for
streamlining. Following consultation and review, the changes to these activities came into effect at the start
of 2020/21. These were made to ensure the financial stability of the charity and to make sure donations
continue to be spent as effectively as possible.

The challenges facing Tenovus Cancer Care were accelerated towards the end of this year, by the onset of
COVID-19, which saw a significant impact on our income from both a fundraising and retail perspective. It
also meant that, like other organisations, the charity had to quickly adapt its service delivery, working
arrangements, and take practical steps to ensure it was able to continue supporting cancer patients and
their families.

To help achieve our aim of providing support and treatment to people with cancer and their
loved ones, closer to home in unique ways:

Our Mobile Support Units brought treatment closer to home

© In 2019, we further expanded our fleet of Mobile Support Units to four, with the completion and
launch of our fourth unit in April 2019. Our units provide treatment and support closer to home, for
people across the country and we work with both NHS Wales and the All Wales Lymphoedema
Network. Our units are also now used to support services run in partnership with a private
pharmaceutical company. During the year, we further extended this partnership, working with a NHS
Trust in Wales on a limited paid basis, which formed part of our consideration of commercial
opportunities to build sustainable income.

© In 2019/20, the service in Wales delivered over 4,100 chemotherapy, immunotherapy and
lymphoedema treatments on board our units, seeing nearly 700 patients. We've saved these patients
long, stressful journeys to.hospital and the cost of making those journeys.

© The partnership with the pharmaceutical company now includes us providing mobile chemotherapy
treatments to patients in Surrey. The agreement has also enabled us to redesign our oldest unit, to
improve disabled access within the unit as well as giving it a new lease of life. Our original unit is
now being used by Tenovus Trading Limited, our trading subsidiary under the Tenovus Health brand
to provide support to gastric patients in North West London. Any profits from the provision of this
service are directed back to Tenovus Cancer Care to support cancer patients and their families.

]
.
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Our Care Team has contlnued to be there for people when they need help the most

O Our free nurse-led Support Line was once again open every day this year. With increasing phone
and chat service support available from other cancer charities, we have seen a reduction in the total
amount of inbound calls, so we continued to focus on directing people in need to our Cancer
Callback Service. This has given us the opportunity to run the service more effectively and has
meant we have reduced the opening hours of the service, although it still operates 365 days a year.

Our Callback service is available to anyone who needs it, complementing the NHS care patients
already receive, and helping to take the pressure off over-stretched services. It's unique,
personalised support for cancer patients and their loved ones who may feel alone or unsure. Our
nurses proactively keep in touch with patients, and call them at a time that's convenient. Whether
it's to see how treatment is going, how they're getting on after surgery, or how they're coping with
the loss of a loved one, we're there for them, for as long as they need us.

This year our nurses handled over 3,600 proactive outbound calls. By focussing on longer term
support for our clients, our aim is to improve their experiences and ensure that every one of them
receives a holistic service based upon their needs. The work completed internally on the Customer
Relationship Management (CRM) system during the year, has helped the team Improve the service
they are able to provide to clients, with ‘automated call scheduling’ functionality now available.

¢ This year marked the ten year anniversary of our Sing with Us choirs. Our 18 choirs across Wales
and England, continue to support around 1,350 people affected by cancer every week. They also
raise funds and awareness of the charity and its work out in the community, helping us reach even
more people.

Unfortunately, due to COVID-19 and in-line with Government directives, all of our face to face choir
rehearsals were cancelled from 16" March. However, as it is more important than ever for us to
support our choristers during the pandemic, we adapted quickly, running online choir sessions
‘virtually', which have been very well received.

© Our highly skilled and accredited Benefits Advisors continued to provide financial suppont, including
debt and money management advice to over 2,700 people, elther over the phone or at one of our
outreach locations. During 2019/20 our team secured over £4 million worth of benefits (an increase
of 9% on last year), with an annualised value of nearly £7 million. The CRM system roll out during
the year improved the team'’s internal workflow by giving them greater visibility of all cases. This
allows them to actively prioritise and manage their caseload to more effectively help clients in need
of financial support.

While we continued to receive a Welsh Government Front Line Advice Services Grant as part
funding of the service during 2019, this grant was replaced by the Single Advice Fund from 1*
January 2020. While we remain one of the referral partners, we have lost around 60% of funding for
our Benefits Advice Service. Our aspiration was to grow our Money Advice Service off the back of
our on-going benefits advice, but this was not possible due to both the cut in funding and the overall
reduction seen in the number of referrals following the introduction of the Single Advice Fund.

© As well as being a referral partner, we look to work in partnership whenever possible and this
includes being an active member of the Independent Advice Providers Forum, representing the
voice of the independent advice sector in Wales.
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© In March 2018, working in partnership with clinical psychologist Professor Neil Frude, we developed
and launched our new ACTivate Your Life — Affected by Cancer programme. Based on Acceptance
and Commitment Therapy (ACT), the course was specially designed to help people to separate their
thoughts and feelings, focus their attention on what can be changed, understand mindfulness
techniques, and ways to live wisely and well. The courses are delivered over four weeks and are
presented by trained volunteers.

During the course of the year, we delivered 11 courses, explored opportunities to run the course in a
range of venues and locations across Wales, and supported 124 clients. The feedback has
continued to be positive, with patients, carers and people who've been bereaved all benefitting from
the courses.

Our aim for 2019/20 was to build on the first year's platform and expand the service, and this year
has seen some modest increase in the number of participants. However, our partnership with
Professor Frude came to an end in December 2019, when this service was paused. Following the
strategic review at the beginning of 2020, this service was identified as at risk of being discontinued.

This year we continued to represent the needs of people with cancer and their loved ones
We set out our vision for the future of cancer care

© Cancer care is about so much more than medicine. Government policy has a huge impact on our
lives, making our communities healthier, affecting the speed of diagnosis and treatment, and
improving how people live with and beyond cancer. We produced and published ‘More than
Medicine: our ideas for the next Welsh Government’, a comprehensive report setting out the
changes we think are needed to improve the lives of people affected by cancer over the coming
years.

We involved the public and patients in our decision making

© OuriGrants are innovative community-based research projects that have the potential to change
cancer care, treatment and quality of life. Following our 2019 call, our Research Advisory Group
(RAG) comprising people affected by cancer, recommended seven new projects for funding in
October 2019, These projects represent an investment of over £198,000 of research funding, with
the projects commencing in the next financial year. We are looking forward to seeing the benefits
this research will bring to cancer patients in the future.

In 2019/20, we continued to conduct and fund research to improve cancer outcomes and
experiences

Funding innovative and ground-breaking cancer research continues to be one of our key strategic aims,
and in 2019/20, in addition to supporting existing projects, we invested a further £320,000 in new research.

© We understand that patient needs can change, and want to make sure we're always offering the
best possible services, in the right way. To help us achieve this, we launched our Research Strategy
Grants, which offer up to £60,000 for two-year projects aimed at advancing or evaluating the
effectiveness of our services. This year we funded the second year of our inaugural grant winner's
project, exploring our stakeholders’ perceptions of the charity's work and impact, and identifying our
unique place within cancer care in Wales. We also awarded £60,000 funding for our second
research strategy project.
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o

In 2019/20 we saw the publication of the results of the second phase of our More than Singing
Research. The study, conducted by Dr Daisy Fancourt and the Centre for Performance Science,
was an extension of our previous research which measured the impact of an hour of singing on a
range of biomarkers. This is the first research project conducted over a longer period of time which
shows the impact of the Tenovus Cancer Care's Sing with Us choirs on people affected by cancer. it
found that singing led to decreases in anxiety and depression and also led to improvements in
wellbeing, particularly amongst carers and those who have been bereaved.

We also continue to fund research with KESS Il (Knowledge Economy Skills Scholarships) as weil
as funding through the Research Capacity Building Collaboration (RCBC), which provide
opportunities for registered health professionals to develop their research confidence, skills and
expertise.

We continued to work in partnership with the National Cancer Research Institute (NCRI) who work
to promote communication, coordination and collaboration in cancer research across the country. In
particular, this year saw the continuation of our involvement in an initiative spearheaded by the
James Lind Alliance, to determine priorities for research that will help people live better with and
beyond cancer. From this work, we dedicated our iGrants funding call to focus on these key areas,
with all grants selected and funded aligning to at least one of the priorities.

To make sure we fund the highest quality projects, we are a member of the Association of Medical
Research Charities (AMRC), a national organisation of leading medical and health research
charities. Our membership requires us to adhere to the principle of robust, independent and
transparent governance and peer-review when awarding and administering grant funding.

Engaging the public and our supporters in our research is hugely important to us. As well as raising
awareness of the work we do, it can help raise funds, encourage more people to get involved in
research, and inspire the next generation of cancer researchers and charity supporters. This year
we took part in 16 public research engagement events. A particular highlight was an exciting new
partnership with Escape Rooms and The Parker Lab at Cardiff University, a major undertaking
putting on an event for Cardiff Science Festival that will now be in place for 12 months.

This year we've continued to work with communities to develop healthy lifestyle
programmes raising awareness of how to prevent cancer

Research shows that around 40% of all cancers in the UK could be prevented by changes to lifestyle.
Wales has one of the highest incidences of cancer and some of the poorest survival rates in Europe. We
continue to work in communities across the country to help people to make changes to reduce thelr risk of
cancer. We also worked to raise awareness of the signs and symptoms of cancer, so people are diagnosed
sooner and have better chances of survival.

Promoting healthy lifestyles in our communities

o

Rates of skin cancer have more than doubled over the last 20 years, yet it's highly preventable. Our
Here Comes the Sun campaign aims to make sure people know how to stay safe in the sun and are
aware of the signs and symptoms of skin cancer. We had another successful summer with our
campaign, holding a number of larger events, along with a focus on working with schools.

The schools programme was particularly successful, benefitting from previous feedback. Through
the summer we visited over 100 schools and engaged with approximately 20,000 pupils across
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Wales - this equates to about 10% of the student population. This year we also partnered with The
Karen Clifford Skin Cancer Charity (SKCin) in England. SKCin have their own Sun Safe Schools
programme to encourage schaools to gain accreditation, acknowledging their commitment to sun
safety.

© In Wales, a shocking six in ten adults are overweight or obese and those In the most disadvantaged
communities are most at risk, with obesity acknowledged as the second greatest preventable cause
of cancer after smoking.

Following our accreditation to run the Foodwise for Life community weight management programme,
developed by public health dieticians in Wales, we have continued to provide a number of Foodwise
courses throughout the year. These were run in various locations and communities, largely based
on where funding has been made available to facilitate this. These have provided people with the
knowledge and skills they needed to help them to lose weight.

© This year we further reduced our investment in our ‘Quit with Us' smoking cessation campaign to
enable us to focus and support our other work and activities. For those needing help with quitting
smoking, we used social media and other channels to provide general advice and information and
to signpost people to other organisations and resources.

Following the strategic review in January, our community prevention activities were identified as being at
risk of being discontinued, due to the costs involved and the duplication of work carried out by other
organisations.
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How we achieved it?

Fundraising and trading

Despite another tough year for the third sector, thanks to the hard work, generosity and enthusiasm of our
donors, volunteers and supporters we were able to raise nearly £8.7 million.

During 2019/20, we've had to work hard to raise these essential funds, and we continued to invest in
generating more sustainable regular income. This helps generate money we can rely on, and means we're
able to plan for the future. We're committed to being responsible and respectful in our fundraising, and
continue to be registered with the Fundraising Regulator, abiding by their code of practice and regulations.

For the last month of the year our fundraising efforts were made significantly more challenging as a result
of COVID-18, with planned events postponed or cancelled, and our network of shops being forced to close.

For a full breakdown of our income, see the pie chart on page 6.

Our income can be broken down into monies given through grants, earned from investments and through
trading, and raised by fundraisers.

© Our Friends of Tenovus Cancer Care Groups and our Sing with Us choirs were our voices in the
community, raising funds and awareness. Our dedicated Friends' Groups raised an incredible
£149,570 while our choir members helped raise £71,850, through fundraising, performances, bucket
collections and donations. In addition, our Regional Fundraising Managers continued working with
community fundraising groups across the country and our corporate partners to raise awareness of
the charity and generate vital income,

© In the absence of a specific capital project, fundraising from Trusts and Foundations continued to be
challenging, although we did see an impressive 40% increase in income from this channel.

© Income from legacies continued to provide a significant proportion of our income at just over £1.5m.
We are continuing to invest in legacy marketing, increasing our spend on our Free Wills Month
campaign in March for the fifth year running.

©  We continued to offer a mixed variety of fundraising events including perennial favourites like our
Lovelight concerts. This year we also trialled some new events, including a new golf event called
Gourmet Golf. However, due to COVID-19, we sadly had to cancel our annual gala ball in March
2020 which raises a significant amount for us — this is just one example of the impact of the
pandemic on our income.

In last year's accounts, we noted our ambition to streamline the number of fundraising events and
extend our partnership working. Therefore in 2019/20 we began to undertake more efficient
community events, and worked hard to focus on our existing valued event partners such as the
Snowdonia Marathon, Walk the Walk, and the National Botanical Gardens of Wales. We had also
successfully secured three new event partnerships for events in 2020/21, although these have now
had to be postponed or cancelled as a result of COVID-19.

© This year we also continued to try and invest in the growth of our lottery lines. We tested an external
lottery recruitment partner, but after high afttrition decided not to continue investment with them.
Instead, we worked more closely with our lottery administration supplier (Make A Smile Lottery) on
face to face recruitment. We changed our focus from quantity to developing more quality,
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meaningful relationships with new players and initial results have been positive. We also decided to
seek alternative, lower cost ways to recruit new players and have begun to develop a strategy to
support this. We still receive 75p for every £1 played, which is above the industry average.

© Our network of 61 charity shops is a major sustainable income stream for Tenovus Cancer Care
and this year has raised nearly £900k after direct costs, with costs running lower than in the
previous year. Our shops continue to connect us with communities across the country and help
raise awareness of our campaigns and services.

© We have had another challenging year with gross sales running slightly below expectations, even
prior to COVID-19. Recruitment of good calibre shop managers for vacant posts has become
increasingly difficult over the past few years. Some shops had to close for significant periods, while
for other shops additional costs were incurred, including travel and overtime, to ensure we had
manager cover across the netwark.

© In order to remain competitive and to provide the best experience possible for our customers,
volunteers, and staff, we reviewed our processes and working practises, to standardise these
across our shops. Tralning was rolled out to both staff and volunteers from October onwards, and
we hope this work will result in a more enjoyable experience for those visiting and working in our
shops in future.

© We also reviewed the overall profitability of our network, looking at each individual shop against a
minimum benchmark. This resulted in the closure of three shops, with a further shop scheduled for
closure early in the next financial year. These closures will have minimum impact on overall profit,
but will help to reduce our costs.

© COVID-19 has had a major impact on sales in the last quarter, with total sales falling from mid-
February onwards, and our shops being forced to close on 24th March 2020. The closures
significantly affected overall sales and with us effectively losing the last six weeks of trading, retail
income for the year ended (9%) below budget. At the end of January, retail profit was down by
22%.

Investments

Our fixed asset investment portfolio continues to be used to support both our on-going activities and to
maintain capital to support our future work. The growth on the portfolio Is designed to supplement our
reserves and our other income generating activities for the medium to long-term. We have given Barclays
Wealth (regulated by Financial Services Authority) discretionary powers to manage a balanced portfolio to
achieve this.

© During the year we drew down £1,000,000 from our investment portfolio to support our on-going
current core activities and to support our other capital projects.

O Realised gains in the year amounted to £58,157 (2018/19: £112,013). The pandemic affected the
year-end market value of our portfolio and showed a decrease of £340,681 (2018/19: increase of
£158,631) which was charged into our unrestricted reserves.

© Our policy is to not directly invest in any stocks or shares associated with the tobacco industry. Post
year end the portfolio continues to follow the market volatility seen over the last few months as a
result of the pandemic. The Trustees are currently looking to protect the portfolio by avolding any
further drawdowns until the stock market stabilises and we can achieve a sale above investment
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cost.

© The Trustees are mindful of the need for a balanced portfolio and regularly monitor the performance
of the investments. This monitoring has been delegated to the Finance and General Purposes
Committee, and following discussions and review with Barclays Wealth, the performance of the
portfolio is noted as satisfactory, against the target return. The detail of our investments can be
noted on page 57.

Surplus and deficit
Deficit

With the money raised this year against the money spent on services and research, we have generated a
deficit before gains, losses and exceptional charges of £1,093,973 (2018/19: surplus £213,703).

This has principally arisen as a resuit of spending the significant legacy income that we received towards
the end of last year for on-going services. The reduction in both fundraising and retall income against the
planned spend has also had an impact this year. This has been accentuated by the effect of COVID-19 on
our retail income and our fundraising activities for the last six to eight trading weeks of the year.

This deficit has been charged through our unrestricted reserves in accordance with our reserves policy.
See page 29 for our reserves policy.

Our passionate and dedicated people

We simply couldn't achieve what we do without our incredible staff and volunteers.

Q We currently employ over 200 staff with a wide range of skills, knowledge, professional
qualifications and experience. Our alm is for our staff to be well-rewarded and to pay a salary that is
competitive with other charities of a similar size in Wales, so that we can attract and retain high
calibre staff to deliver our strategic aims.

© Volunteers continue to support all areas of our organisation including our services, shops, events
and campaigns. This year we have seen a slight decrease in our overall number of volunteers from
2,085 to 1,952. This reflects changes within the charity as well as the increasing competition
externally to recruit and attract volunteers. However, we have recruited just over 500 new
volunteers, achieving our overall target and we have seen a positive increase in volunteers across
Retail, Finance and Operations and Marketing and Communications. Prior to COVID 19 we
completed a survey with all our volunteers and we will use this feedback to identify ways we can
successfully recruit, develop and support our volunteers across the Charity.

© As part of our 5™ strategic aim, we participated in an external employee engagement survey and we
will use these results to help us continue to develop our workforce. At the same time we began the
upgrade of our IT infrastructure to support more flexible ways of working. We dovetailed this with
consideration of the use of our existing office space and how we use It, in order to prepare
ourselves for a head office move in 2021,
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Working in partnership

Working in partnership allows us to share knowledge, resources and increase our impact. It avolds
duplicating effort, and helps make sure the money we spend is used as effectively as possible. Throughout
the year we maintained and made a number of partnerships to help us achieve our strategic aims.

© We continue to be active members of the Association of Medical Research Charities (AMRC) and
National Cancer Research Institute (NCRI).

© We continued to be an active member of the Wales Cancer Alliance, a platform to scrutinise the
development of Welsh Government policy and shape the future development of cancer delivery
plans.

© Increasingly, reducing preventable cancers has risen up the agenda. We have supported the work
of the Future Generations Commissioner to work toward a healthier Wales. We have also been
working with Obesity Alliance Cymru and the Wales Tobacco Control Alliance to tackle the leading
causes of preventable cancer. :

What we haven’t achieved

Despite a successful year, limited resources and other external factors meant that we simply weren't able
to achieve everything we had planned.

© As part of our Here Comes the Sun campaign we focus on engaging with schools and were looking
to build on this in 2019/20. We looked into developing a healthy lifestyle programme specifically for
young people, which could form part of the Welsh Baccalaureate. While we had initial discussions
with the WJEC examination board last year, we were unable to progress this further in 2019/20.

© We took a step back from the Health Check in 2019/20. In the last few years our use and
involvement with the Health Check was in-line with the ABACus project being run by Cardiff
University and other organisations. This year we made the decision to take a more advisory role
with the project, thus ending our physical use of the Health Check itself. '

©  While we have continued to progress our new website project, including the completion of the
design phase, we were not in a position to launch the site in 2019/20. This was due to the need to
build a temporary website when our former website company announced they were closing with
minimal notice. In addition, the project has been affected by a change of key personnel within the
organisation, as well as COVID-19, and will now be launched later in 2020.
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Looking forward

Tenovus Cancer Care supports cancer patients and their families in many different ways, but as a charity
we can only continue to provide services and fund research equal to the value of the on-going donations
we receive and income we make. For this reason, the start of the 2020/21 year saw us enact the changes
proposed as part of the strategic review in January 2020. These decisions, while difficult to make, will help
ensure the financial stability of the charity which, given the impact of COVID-19, is now more important
than ever.

© With the loss of funding from the Welsh Gavernment Front Line Advice Services Grant and following
the review, we streamiined our Benefits and Debt Advice Team. We will now focus solely on welfare
benefits advice, delivered remotely, and will no longer provide outreach support in hospitals. This
will be done via phone and video appointments, something the team had already been successfully
doing for clients across the country, since the COVID-19 restrictions were put in place in March
2020.

© As part of the strategic changes our ACTivate Your Life emotional support programme ceased in
May 2020. For people needing emotional support in the future, our Support Line remains open 365
days a year and our nurses will continue to listen, support and signpost those needing help to
relevant organisations.

© We also took the difficult decision to end our prevention programmés in the community, from May
2020. However, we will continue to provide important health messages and prevention information
on our website and look to drive positive change in these areas through our Policy work.

Like others in the third sector, the challenges we face have been accelerated by the COVID-19 crisis. The
pandemic had a significant impact on Tenovus Cancer Care at the end of the 2019/20 financial year, and
this situation will persist into 2020/21. We continue to work hard to adapt and minimise its effects on the
charity.

In relation to our income, COVID-19 has had a significant impact on both our fundraising and retail
activities. Following Government directives, high-income events such as the London Marathon have been
postponed. This has also led to the cancellation of nearly all local fundraising events put on by our Friends
of Tenovus Cancer Care groups, corporate supporters and individuals across the country. These
postponements and cancellations have meant a large deficit in the income the charity would otherwise
have expected.

Our 61 charity shops, which provide around 70% of our annual income, were forced to cease trading on
24™ March. With a phased reopening of our shops in England not expected to start until mid-June, and with
our shops in Wales not reopening until later in the summer, this is estimated to cost in excess of £2 million
in lost revenue.

In respanse to the on-going financial position, and significant, immediate challenges posed by the COVID-
19 pandemic:

o We approached our bank regarding an extension to our overdraft facility and reviewed and applied
for all applicable retail and other grants made availabie as a result of COVID-19.

© We made the difficult decision to furlough three quarters of the charity’s staff through the
Govemment's Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme. Senlor staff also voluntarily took a significant
temporary reduction in pay.
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© We will continue to closely monitor our cash flow position, including the value of our investment
portfolio, while also applying to trusts and foundations for additional support.

O We will further develop our partnerships to streamline the number of large, resource intensive
fundraising events we undertake. We will continue to develop our virtual fundraising, as well as
running more efficient community events (once Government restrictions are lifted and it is safe to do
s0).

© We will look to grow our income from online trading. The impact of COVID-19 on our network of
community shops, highlights the importance of ecommerce. We will continue to develop and drive
income via our eBay shop, while developing a new online shop for a range of new goods. This will
be added to our new website scheduled to launch later in 2020. We will also continue to explore and
develop commercial partnerships that can offer complementary services and products available to
our supporters and service users. This will help to drive income, support and awareness.

O We will continue 1o review our retail network to ensure best use of our funds and resources to
maximise shop income. This will be our most challenging year ever. COVID-19 has kept the doors
to our shops firmly closed, with a phased reopening not expected until mid-June through to August
across the portfolio.

While plans are In place to maximise sales when our shops do reopen, with social distancing in
place there will be an inevitable impact on the way we operate, income and profit. A trial opening,
starting in England, will enable us to review and refine our plans as we reopen all 61 of our shops in
a safe way for staff, volunteers and customers. As with other areas of the charity, we will need to
review our retail operation so that it is fit for purpose, once the pandemic subsides.

Delivery of our other cancer support services and our research plans looking forward and in light of COVID-
19:

O In relation to our Mobile Support Unit service, given the challenges of working with multiple Health
Boards and the impact of COVID-18 on the clinics in the short term, we will continue to engage with
external partles, including the NHS, to try and maximise the use of our fleet. We will explore all
opportunities so that these flexible, mobile spaces are used to best effect to support the people who
need them.

© With all 18 of our Sing with Us choirs unable to meet for the foreseeable future due to COVID-19,
we will be holding off any further work on choir expansion until the pandemic subsides, and it is safe
to restart face to face choir rehearsals. In the meantime we will continue to operate our online,
virtual choirs.

O The nurses on our free Support Line will still be there for anyone affected by cancer needing
support, information or a listening ear. As well as receiving calls from patients and their familles,
they will continue to make proactive outbound calls as part of our Cancer Callback service, which is
available to anyone who needs it. During and in the aftermath of the pandemic, the support they
offer cancer patients is needed more than ever. Our Support Line Team s also working alongside
volunteers who are leading on a new Tele-Friends service launched during the pandemic to offer
support for people feeling isolated and alone.

© With regards to our research, we had to revisit our plans due to the practical barmiers of conducting
research during the pandemic. As a result, we have agreed with our grant recipients to postpone
some research projects which will now start in September 2021, and we made the difficult decision
to withdraw funding for one Research Strategy Grant. We have been in contact with all our
researchers and partners, to make them aware of the changes being made as a result of COVID-19.
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Our revised plans will make sure Tenovus Cancer Care is in the best position to effectively support
cancer research, once this crisis subsides.

© In 2020/21, we willl further our commitment to involve patients and public in all aspects of our grants
calls and processes, to ensure that the patient voice is heard throughout. We belleve this leads to
more important, relevant and impactful research in the long term.

©  With regards to our Policy work and the Senedd Elections in May 2021, we want those standing to
know exactly what we want them to do if they are successful, to best meet the needs of people
affected by cancer. Our Palicy Officer will be promoting ‘More than Medicine: our ideas for the next
Woelsh Government' to politicians across the political spectrum to help make sure that whatever the
outcome of the elections, the voice of people affected by cancer is at the heart of the next Senedd.

G We will complete the development and launch of our new, mobile responsive website, bringing an
improved user experience for our clients, volunteers, supporters and researchers.

© Continuing our work on our 5" strategic alm, we will use the results of our staff survey, completed in
2019/20, to help us further develop our workforce. We will also explore ways of using all
technologies to communicate more effectively with staff and volunteers, and provide additional
opportunities for digital leaming, development, and collaborative working. We will also use the
feedback from our volunteer survey to identify ways we can successfully recruit, develop and
support our volunteers across the Charity. '

© We will invest in upgrading our technology to manage and report on Human Resources, Learning
and Development, and Health and Safety, that will help us manage our resources more effectively.

©  With our head office lease coming to an end in March 2021, we are now actively looking for new
office premises. Prior to the pandemic, we were already looking to occupy smaller premises, to give
greater focus to flexible working, and to save on costs. With the advent of COVID-19 and the impact
of social distancing, working from home and more flexibly, along with IT security, will become a
higher priority for the charity.

Itis clear that COVID-19 will have an on-going impact on Tenovus Cancer Care in 2020/21. With the post-
pandemic world so uncertain, we will need to review our strategy across the charity, to make sure we are in
the best possible position to support cancer patients and their families in the future.
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Structure, Governance and Management

Charity as a Legal Entity

Tenovus Cancer Care was originally established as an unincorporated organisation in 1943, and is now a
company limited by guarantee (No. 00943501). Tenovus Cancer Care is registered as a charity with the
Charity Commission (No. 1054015). Our registered office is as shown on page 24. We are governed by a
Memorandum and an Articles of Assoclation that were adopted on 3™ December 1968 and amended on
19" March 1996, 16" March 2009 and 27™ March 2018.

Our Trustees and senior executives are listed on pages 22 and 24.

Committees & Trustee Membership

« Chair o Committee/Sub Committee Member

Committees and Sub Committees
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Trustees '
Prof Malcolm Mason o .
(Chairman)
Wyn Mears (resigned 1* . . . *
October 2019)
Melanie Goward (resigned . . . o
23" July 2019) '
Michaet Borrill (Deputy . . . .
Chair)
Paula Kathrens (resigned . . e
15" July 2019)
Anne-Marie Koukourava » o

Prof Geraint Williams

Prof Debarah Fitzsimmons

Hugh O'Sullivan . . ° .
Christopher Thomson o . .

Timothy Finch (Appointed . .

17" June 2019)

Peter Barrett Lee . .
(Appointed 6" September

2019)

Louise Fleet (Appointed . .

15™ October 2019)

Huw George (Appointed . .

16" October 2019)
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Co-Opted Members

Rab Peterson

Andrew Morgan

Ralph Vaughan

Gareth Jones

Dr Melanie Goward
(Joined 23™ July 2019)

Sub Commiittee
Members

Dr Charlotte Bevan

Dr Doug Winton

Prof Mari Lloyd-Williams

Laura Osborne

Jan Rymer (Left 22™
October 2019)

Barbara George (Left
November 2019)

Lynfa Maeer

Lesley Radley (Chair)

Jayne Griffiths

Mary Webb

Rachelle Barlow

Dr James Arnold

Prof Jonathon Pines

"Prof lan Tomlinson

Dr Katrina Whitaker

Prof John Saxton

Dr Abigail Fisher

Prof Julia Downing

Prof Peter Murchie

Prof Bridget Johnston

Alison Rees (Joined 22
November 2019)

John Buckman (Joined
22™ November 2019)

Rachel Curran (Joined
22" November 2019)

Wayne John (Joined 22
November 2019)

Stephen Capper (Joined
22" November 2019)
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Patrons

Royal Patron
Patrons

Leadership Team

Company Secretary
Principal Address and Registered Office

Principal Professional Advisors and External
Auditors .

Solicitors

Bankers

Investment Advisors

HRH The Princess Royal
Rob Brydon

Aled Davies

Carl Edwards

Wynne Evans

Catrin Finch

Connie Fisher

Cory Hill

Dafydd James

Laurence and Jackie Llewelyn-Bowen
Sian Lloyd

Rupert Moon

Nigel Owens

Kai Owens

Leona Vaughan

Chief Executive -

Judi Rhys (Appointed 20" May 2019)
Claudia McVie (Resigned 29™ May 2019)

Director of Finance - Hazel Sweeney FCA
Commercial Director - Keith Bryant (Fixed term
contract ended 13® September 2019)

Director of income Generation - Darren Irwin
(Appointed 6™ January 2020)

Director of Research & Support - Rhian Edwards
(until 11* February 2020)

Director of Marketing & Communications - James
Powell

Director of People & Development - Julie Rees

Hazel Sweeney FCA
Gleider House, Ty Glas Road, Cardiff, CF14 5BD.
Telephone: 029 2076 8850

Baldwins Audit Services Ty Derw, Lime Tree Court,
Cardiff Gate Business Park, Cardiff, CF23 BAB.

Berry Smith, Haywood House, Dumfries Place,
Cardiff, CF10 3GA.

HSBC Bank plc, 56 Queen Street, CardIff, CF10
4PX

Barclays Wealth, 2nd Floor, Windsor Court, 1-3
Windsor Place, Cardiff, CF10 38X
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Subsidiary Undertakings

Tenovus Cancer Care has one wholly owned subsidiary, Tenovus Trading Limited. The company shares
their registered office with Tenovus Cancer Care. The charity had another subsidiary, Tenovus Health
Limited (company number 08146954), a private limited company incorporated in the UK, which was
dissolved in the year.

Tenovus Trading Limited conducts trading activities, in greetings cards and other purchased goods for sale
in Tenovus Cancer Care shops and at events, as well as use of Mobile Support Units for non-cancer
services, with all profits being covenanted to Tenovus Cancer Care. The results and year end position of
the subsidiary are shown in note 4a to the financial statements.

The Board

The Board of Trustees Is responsible for the overall governance of Tenovus Cancer Care. The Trustees as
members are also Directors of Tenovus Cancer Care. As set out in the Memorandum and Articles of
Association, the Chair of the Trustees is nominated by the Board of Trustees and elected by them.

New Trustees are appointed following a selection process using a number of methods to attract potential
new members. When considering new Trustees, the Board considers specialist skills required through a
skills audit. New Trustees are appointed by a majority of the Board of Trustees, initially for a period of three
years, but can be invited to serve for a further three year term. New Trustees are provided with an
induction, giving them an overview of the responsibilities and activities carried out by the charity. Tralning
on external and organisational issues is provided as required.

The Board of Trustees and Executive Directors meet at least four times a year, and as members at an
Annual General Meeting, and is responsible for setting an appropriate strategy for the charity. It also
ensures that relevant performance measures are in place. The Board receives regular reports on all
aspects of the charity's work.

There are five established Committees and two Sub Committees {in addition we have a Research Advisory
Group). The members of these Committees include Trustees meeting with Executive Directors, and are
also attended by external advisors when required. The Terms of Reference for these Committees are
summarised below.

Finance and General Purposes Committee

The Finance and General Purposes Committee takes delegated responsibility on behalf of the Board of
Trustees for oversaeing all financial aspects of the charity so as to ensure long term viability, including:

Financial and operational performance and procedures
Annual plans and budgets

Investments

Pensions

Salary reviews

Human resource issues

Health and safety

New projects

Information technology

s 00000 eco
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Audit Risk and Governance Committee

The Audit Risk and Governance Committee has a responsibility for monitoring and reviewing:

[+]

(o]
(8]
(o]

Policies and processes for the identification, assessment and management of risk, including
financial control

The charity's financial statements to assess the integrity of financial reporting

The scope, results and effectiveness of external and any internal audits

The independence of the external auditors, their range of non-audit services and fees

Fundraising and Marketing Committee

The Fundraising and Marketing Committee has a responsibility for monitoring and reviewing:

(o]
©

(o]

o0

Policles and processes for income generation including fundraising strategy, as well as retall
Financial income through fundraising practice and retailing, and the robustness of planning in these
areas

Etfective scrutiny of income generation financial performance

The effectiveness of current fundraising and retailing activity

Arrangements with external agencies in providing services to support our income generation activity

Research and Support Committee

The Research and Support Committee has a responsibility for monitoring and reviewing:

0

o

o

Performance of the Cancer Support Team and assessing the strategy for the development of new
services

Decisions on research spend based upon the advice of two independent advisory Committees
made up of experts within their field. These are the Scientific Advisory Commiittee, Psychosocial
Research Committee, and any other appropriate, independént, peer review based guidance sought
externally

The progress of on-going research projects

Recruitment Selection and Remuneration Committee

The responsibilities of the Recruitment, Selection and Remuneration Committee are to:

o
o

Review the composition of the Board

Carry out regular skills audits of the Trustee Board and identify the skills, experience, characteristics
and backgrounds that are needed to provide high quality effective governance as well as
appropriate challenge and support to the Chief Executive

Prepare role descriptions, person specifications and an information pack for prospective Board
members and prepare a recruitment plan and timetable

Interview prospective Board members and as appropriate recommend the appointment of
candidates to the Board

Consider and recommend to the Board the broad policy for the remuneration to attract, retain and
motivate those people of the highest calibre for the roles of Chief Executive and Executive Directors
Select and appoint any remuneration consultants who advise the Committee

Ensure that there is an on-going programme of board development, including technical and other
briefing sessions, away days etc.

Consider such other matters as are referred to the Committee by the Board
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Scientific Advisory Sub Committee

The Committee is responsible for impartially overseeing the research activities of the charity on behalf of
the Tenovus Cancer Care Board of Trustees.

The responsibilities of the Committee shall be to:

O Authorise the funding of research projects that fulfil the aims and objectives of the charity and
ensure they receive rigorous peer review

© Make recommendations to the Tenovus Cancer Care Board of Trustees with regards to research
spend based upon the deliberations of the Committee and any peer review-based guidance sought
externally by Tenovus Cancer Care

© Review the progress of on-going research projects

O Monitor and contribute to the development and Implementation of corporate strategy

© Review terms of reference annually and evatuate performance and good practice

Psychosocial Research Advisory Sub Committee

The Commiittee is responsible for impartially overseeing the research activities of the charity on behalf of
the Tenovus Cancer Care Board of Trustees.

The responsibilities of the Committee shall be to:

© Authorise the funding of research projects that fulfil the aims and objectives of the charity and
ensure they receive rigorous peer review

© Make recommendations to the Tenovus Cancer Care Board of Trustees with regards to research
spend based upon the deliberations of the Committee and any peer review-based guidance sought
externally by Tenovus Cancer Care

© Review the progress of on-going research projects

O Monitor and contribute to the development and implementation of corporate strategy

© Review terms of reference annually and evaluate performance and good practice

Chief Executive
Authority to conduct Tenovus Cancer Care's day to day activities is delegated to the Chief Executive, who

is responsible for ensuring that the Board strategy and palicies are carried out. The Leadership Team
(previously named the Senior Management Team) reports to the Chief Executive and meets monthly.

Corporate Governance
The Trustees complete an annual review against the charity governance code to highlight any areas for

potential improvement. This is used to develop the charity’s future policies and intemal procedures, to
ensure we continue to follow best practice.
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Risk

The charity has detailed organisational and departmental risk registers which are reviewed monthly by the
Leadership Team and quarterly by the Audit Risk and Govemance Committee and the Board. Significant
new risks are brought to the attention of this Committee and the Board as necessary to ensure they are
being actively managed. A traffic light system is used to easily rank the key organisational risks. During the
assessment process we identified the following major organisational risks:

Red risks

Potential failure to secure adequate sustainable income to enable us to deliver our
mission.

A donor and community-led supporter retention plan is in place to look after the people who
give us their time or money, helping to protect long-term income and support. We have
further invested in our regular giving and legacy programmes, and are developing new-style
events particularly during the COVID-18 pandemic which made virtua! events crucial to our
fundraising effort. We continue to pilot a pald delivery model for our Mobile Support Units,
as well as developing complementary products and services through commercial
partnerships or affiiate proagrammes.

On-going impact of the COVID-19 pandemic across the charity.

Identified and tracked through the last quarter of 2019/20 through the Leadership Team to
decide what measures were required. Managed via an immediate response crisis plan
which formed part of the business continuity plan. This covers all aspects of the charity
including risk assessmants, home working, requirements of social distancing, the impact on
fundraising and retail income, operational impact across the entire property portfolio, cyber
security, all service delivery and research plans, as well as on-going tracking of the financial
impact. The plan continues to be revised and acted upon as Govemment directives and
guidance are updated.

Amber risks

No deal Brexit could result in shortages of fuel and supplies, as well as a drop in
investments, all of which could affect our service delivery.

We are monitoring this situation on an on-going basis as December 2020 deadline
approaches. We have developed a continuity plan including adding our Mobile Support
Units to the NHS essential user’s priority list. We'll continue to monitor our investments and
update our risk indicator for our investment retumn in our current reserves plan.

Potential Inability to attract, recruit and retain the right staff and volunteers for key
roles within the organisation.

We've developed our recruitment process to reflect our values and ensure we recruit the
best people. We use a range of tools including training and development to maximise staff
retention, and take regular feedback from staff and volunteers.

Potential failure to safeguard our data in line with Data Protection rules including
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR - May 2018).

We have a Data Protection Officer who, together with the Data Protection Steering Group,
set and regularly review policy, processes and training, as wall as ensuring that all third
party agreements are compliant.

Potential inability to demonstrate the impact of our work to all our stakeholders.
To demonstrate our impact we maintain close relationships with all our stakeholders. To
complement this we have a dedicated Storyteller and Research Engagement Officer who
collate examples of the impact of our services, highlight the quality of our research and
share successes.

Potential tack of public awareness of our charity, our contribution to communities
and what we do.
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We promote a comprehensive schedule of activities and events delivered across afl
communities, via the media, our website, social media, through our retail network, and other
communications,

Green risks

Potential failure to support cancer patients, their families, and fund research in the
way we have laid out in our vision, mission and strategy.

We have a three year strategy and progress Is reported to Trustees quarterly. Departmental
objectives are set and monitored monthly by the Leadership Team. Services are evaluated
and results fed back into the strategic planning process. Research priorities are set in
consultation with our Research Advisory Group which includes people affected by cancer.

Policies

Management of reserves

O Our income is predominantly made up from retail and fundraising income, including legacies. As
Trustees we look to hold adequate reserves for the charity. This allows us to react to challenging
aconomic times, future liabilities and potential threats as well as unexpected opportunities, allowing
us to provide our services for the medium to long term. We have to balance this with spending the
maximum amount as is financially prudent in order to achieve our aim of delivering charitable
activity in the short term.

© The calculation of the required level of reserves is an integral part of our planning, budgeting and
forecasting cycle. Each year the Trustees review the level of accessible, unrestricted reserves
against Identified risks, to calculate the level we need to hold. As the COVID-19 pandemic gathered
pace at the end of 2019/20 and into the next financial year, we became acutely aware of the impact
that it will have on our income generating ability. As a result, we have taken the declision this year to
adopt a cautious approach to the level of reserves that we wish to hold, as our future fundraising
capability and retail income remain uncertain. We are therefore planning to hold all of unrestricted
reserves noted below, with no plans to increase spend over the next year until the pandemic
subsides.

© At March 2020, group reserves stood at £4.2m (2018/19; £5.6m). This was made up of restricted
funds £1.3m (2018/19: £1.6m), designated funds £0.26m (2018/19; £0.27m) and unrestricted
reserves of £2.7m (2018/19: £3.7m). We recorded a deficit in the year on our unrestricted general
fund of £1m, taking our overall unrestricted general fund reserve this year to £2.7m (2018/19:
£3.7m). This included transfers to designated funds for known expenditure on the forthcoming office
move and planned work on our retail property portfolio. We moved £0.1m to our restricted Mobile
Support Unit 1 fund for capital redesign work to reflect on-golng amortisation of monies spent. We
also incurred £0.3m of unrealised losses on our investment portfolio, due to the effect of COVID-19
on the global stock markets.

© The Trustees have concluded that this year we will continue to hold £2.9m as the required minimum
within our unrestricted general fund reserve, to deal with our future plans and mitigate risk relating to
CoviD-19.
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Our people

Our aim is for our staff to be well-rewarded and to pay a salary that is competitive, and pay is
benchmarked externally against other charities of a similar size and location. We don't have any
bonus schemes or performance related pay and, aside from our pensions, all staff receive the same
level of benefits.

© In 2019/20 we paid our employees a cost of living increase of 2%, which included the national living
wage increase where appropriate. This was proposed by the Leadership Team and approved by the
Finance and General Purpose Committee. The Recruitment Selection and Remuneration
Committee approved the 2% increase for the Leadership Team.

© We run a pension scheme with all staff auto enrolled from April 2014. We contribute to a voluntary
defined contribution pension scheme for the majority of permanent employees. The assets of both
schemes are held by the approved pension provider Aegon, and are completely independent of the
charity's finances. The charity's contributions are recognised within our statement of financial
activities, in the month in which the salaries are paid. The charity has no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions in the event that these schemes do not hold sufficient assets
to provide future benefits.

© To protect our staff and volunteers, we take safeguarding extremely seriously and have a policy in
place which was reviewed and updated in 2019/20. During March, as a result of COVID-19, all of
our staft transitioned to home working where possible, and where work was not avallable, we had to
take the difficult decision to furlough staff. We will work closely with our staff and volunteers post
pandemic to create safe workplaces and systems of work, including the opportunity for home
working, while taking into account the physical and mental wellbeing of our staff and volunteers.
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Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements and
Corporate Governance

The Trustees (who are also Directors of Tenovus Cancer Care for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report (incorporating the Directors’ report) and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and the group and of the income and
expenditure of the charitable group for that periad. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to:

O Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
O Observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP
O Make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

O State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements

O Prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for maintaining proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the charitable company and the group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irreguiarities.

In so far as the Trustees are aware:

O There is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware

O The Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions,

Auditors

A resolution will be proposed to appoint auditors at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Signeg‘ t;y ordeyf t

Haze! Sweeney — Company Secretary
Date 21 July 2020
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Independent Auditors’ report to the members of Tenovus Cancer Care

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Tenovus Cancer Care Limited (the “parent charity”) and its
subsidiary (the ‘group') for the year ended 31*' March 2020 which comprise the consolidated and parent
Statement of Financial Activities, the consolidated and parent Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102: The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice).

This report is made solely to the charity's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charity's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s. report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
charity's members as a bady, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

© Give a true and fair view of the state of the group and of the parent charity's affairs as at 31% March
2020 and of the group and parent's charity’s income and expenditure for the year then ended;

© Have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice;

© Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
group and parent charity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) require us to
report to you, where:

© The Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

© The Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the group and charity’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.
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Independent Auditors' report to the members of Tenovus Cancer Care
(continued)

Other information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information; we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit;

© The information given in the Trustees' report (incorporating the Directors’ report) for the financial
year for which the financial statements are prepared, is consistent with the financial statements; and

© The Trustees' report (incorporating the Directors’ report) has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and charity and its environment cobtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’ Annual Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

© Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent charity or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us;

© The parent charity financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
retumns;

© Certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

© We have not obtained all the information and explanations necessary for the purposes of our audit.
Responsibilities of the Trustees
As explained more fully in the Trustees’ responsibilities statement set out on page 31 the Trustees are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and

fair view, and for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditors’ report to the members of Tenovus Cancer Care
(continued)

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the group and charity's
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the charity or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are -
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material If, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at: {www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities). This description forms
part of our Auditor’s report.

Sarah Case FCA DChA

Senlor Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of Baldwins Audit Services
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
Date 21* July 2020

Baldwins Audit Services is eligible to act as an auditor In terms of section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006
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Financial Statements
Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 March 2020 {incorporating income and expenditure account and statement of
recognised gains and losses)

Note Unrestricted Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds Funds Funds 2020 2019
Continuing | Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
Operations Opaerations Operations Operations
£ g| £ £ £ £
INCOME & ENDOWMENTS
FROM: .
Donations & Legacies 2 2,109,249 360,139 185,005 3,308 2,657,701 3,263,380
Charitable Activities 3 - - 178,205 - 178,205 205,438
Other Trading Activities 4 5,734,899 - - - 5,734,899 5,978,398
Investments 5 115,112 - - - 115,112 131,466
Other 1,350 - - - 1,350 -
TOTAL INCOME 7,960,610 360,139 363,210 |. 3,308 8,687,267 9,678,682
EXPENDITURE ON:
Ralsing Funds:
Donations & Legacles 6 1,321,033 - 2,103 - 1,323,136 1,384,485
Other Trading Activities 7 4,859,520 - - - 4,859,520 4,914,910
Cost of charitable activities:
Grants to research 8a 722,039 - 18,382 |. - 740,421 539,275
organisations ‘
Patient Services 8b 1,039,738 111,373 769,516 - 1,920,627 1,733,725
Support Groups | 8¢ 578,587 - 45,776 - 624,363 533,413
Campaigns & Policy 8d 61,099 248,766 - 3,308 313,173 259,171
TOTAL EXPENDITURE: 8,582,016 360,139 835,777 3,308 9,781,240 9,364,979
NET INCOME/EXPENDITURE -(624,408) - - (1,093,973) 213,703

before Gains/(Losses)
exceptional charges

and

(472,667) v
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Activilies for the year ended 31 March 2020 (incorporating income and expenditure account and statement of
recognised gains and losses) continued

Net gains/(losses) on 16 (284,829) - - ' - (284,829) 270,374
investments : :
Exceptional Charges 13 - - - - - {750,000)

NET INCOME/EXPENDITURE (906,236) (472,567) (1,378,802) (zss.sﬁs)
Transfers between funds 21 (108,583) - 108,683 : . -

OTHER RECOGNISED
GAINS/(LOSSES)

Gains/(Losses) on disposal of fixed (634) - - - (534) 367
assets

NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS (1,016,362) - (363,984) - (1,379,336). (265,666)

RECONCILIATION IN FUNDS

Fund balances brought forward | 21,22 3,966,616 - 1,621,792 -1 5,587,407 5,862,963
at 1 Aprit 2019 , :

n

Fund balances carried forward 21,22 2,960,263 - 1,257,808 | - ‘4,208,071 6,687,407
at 31 March 2020 0

The loss for the year for Companies Act purposes comprises the net income/ (expenditure) for the year of (£1,378,802) (2018/19: £265,923 loss), with an
additional loss of £534 (2018/19: £367 gain) on disposal of fixed assets giving a net loss of (£1,379,336)(2018/19: £265,556 loss). There is no tax payable on
any of the activities.

The notes on pages 40-69 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheets as at 31 March 2020

Group Charity
Note 2020 2019 2020 2019
4 £ £ £
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 14 1,899,871 1,255,651 1,899,871 1,255,651
Intangible assets 15 90,473 - 90,473 -
Investments 16 2,940,386 4,248,823 2,940,386 v 4,248,824
4,930,730 6,604,474 4,930,730 6,604,476
CURRENT ASSETS '
Stock 17 111,770 39,922 - -
Debtors 18 1,306,285 2,077,369 1,289,639 2,107,480
Cash at bank and in hand 102,242 347,913 24,113 342,169
1,620,297 2,465,204 1,313,762 2,449,649
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Creditors: amounts 10 (1,813,127) (2,061,021) {1,616,433) (2,066,318)
falling due within one
year
"NET CURRENT (292,830) 404,183 (302,681) 394,331
(LIABILITIES) /ASSETS
Creditors: amounts 19 (429,829) (321,250) (429,829) (321,250)
falling due mare than one
year
TOTAL ASSETS 4,208,071 6,687,407 4,198,220 6,677,666
"FUNDS
Unrestricted
Parent charity 21 2,940,412 3,955,764 2,940,412 3,955,764
Subsidiary Company 21 9,851 9,851 - -
Total unrestricted funds 2,950,263 3,965,615 2,940,412 3,955,764
Restricted
Parent charity 21 1,257,808 1,621,792 1,257,808 1,621,792
4,208,071 6,687,407 4,198,220 6,677,668

The Trustees have prepared group accounts in accordance with section 398 of Companies Act 2006 and
section 138 of the Charities Act 2011.

The financial statements on pages 35-69 were approved by the Board of Directors on 21st July 2020 and
were signed on their behalf by

Malcolm Mason — Director

The notes on pages 40-69 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2020
2020 2019
£ £

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net cash provided/ (used in) operating activities (34,060) (475,627)
(Noted on Page 39)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received 241 3,738
Dividends from investments 114,871 127,728
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,662,659 1,423,145
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - 330
Foreign exchange gains/losses (2,305) -
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets (988,968) (779,792)
Purchase of investments (735,658) (1,095,711)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 50,840 (320,562)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net change in cash and short term deposits (investment 98,896 (92,798)
assets)
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY/(USED IN) 98,896 (92,798)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting 115,676 (888,987)
period
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the (72,115) 816,872
reporting period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting 43,561 ~ (72,115)

period (Note 23)

The notes on pages 40-68 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2020 - continued

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME/ (EXPENDITURE) TO NET CASH INFLOW/ (OUTFLOW) FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2020 2019
£ £
Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period before gains and  (1,093,973) 213,703
losses on investments (as per the statement of financial activities)
Depreqiationlambrtisation of tangible and intangible fixed assets 253,741 201,405
Exceptional charges - (750,000)
Investment income receivable (115,112) (131,466)
(Increase)/decrease in debtors 771,084 (674,425)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors 222,048 653,743
Decrease/(increase) in stocks (71,848) 11,413
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (PAGE 38) g (34,060) - (475,627)

The notes on pages 40-69 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Tenovus Cancer Care is a private company limited by guarantee and a registered charity, incorporated in
England & Wales. Their registered office is 8™ Floor Glelder House, Ty Glas Road, Cardiff CF14 58D.

The principal accounting policies, judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty in the preparation
of the financial statements are as follows:

ACCOUNTING CONVENTION

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the charity's Memorandum and Articles and
Association, the Companies Act 2006 and "Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)" (as amended for accounting
periods commencing from 1 January 2016). The charity is a Public Benefit Entity as defined by FRS 102.

The accounis are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the charity. Monetary amounts in
these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £.

The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The principal accounting policies
adopted are set out below.

GOING CONCERN

The Trustees have reviewed Tenovus Cancer Care's financial position considering the impact of future
activities to ensure it is appropriate to produce the accounts on a going concern basis. There are no
material uncertainties about the charity’s ability to continue.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group incorporate the financial statements of Tenovus Cancer
Care and its subsidiary undertakings, all of which were made up to 31 March 2020. No separate company
Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA) has been prepared for the charity as permitted by section 408 of
the Companies Act 2006 and paragraph 24.37 of the SORP.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The charity prepares a consolidated cash flow statement and the consolidated accounts, in which the
charity’s results are inciuded and are available to the public. It has therefore taken advantage of the
exemption conferred by FRS 102 Section 1 not to prepare a cash flow statement.

¥

INCOMING RESOURCES

Income is recognised when the charity has entitiement to the funds, any performance conditions attached
to the item(s) of income have been met, it is probable that income will be received and the amount can be
measured reliably.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 - continued

Donations and Legacies

Legacies — entitlement is taken as the earlier of the date on which either: the charity is aware that probate
has been granted and the execulor has confirmed that a distribution will be made or when a distribution is
received from the estate. Receipt of a legacy is only considered probable when the amount can be
measured reliably and the charity has been notified of the executor’s intention to make a distribution.
Where legacies have been nofified to charity or the charity is aware of the granting probate and the criteria
for income recognition have not been met, then the legacy is treated as a contingent asset and disclosed if
material.

Direct giving — cash donations and regular gifts are accounted for as received.

Events - voluntary income arising from major events, principally sponsorship, is recognised in the period in
which the event takes place.

Volunteer fundralsing — income from Friends of Tenovus Cancer Care and local committees is accounted
on a receipts basis. The charity has changed its accounting policy in relation to its Friends of Tenovus
groups from an accruals basis to a receipts basis. The balance of the groups Is not material to the
accounts.

Major donors — major gifts and income from partnerships are recognised when received.

Lottery income — is accounted for on an accruals basis.

Gift Aid - is included based on claims made and an accruals basls.

Income from charitable activities

Grants, where related to performance and specific deliverables, are accounted for as the charity eams the
right to consideration by its performance. Where income is received in advance of performance its
recognition is deferred until the criteria for income recognition has been met. Where entitiement occurs
before income is received the income is accrued. Non-performance related grants are recognised on
receipt and any unspent funds are carried forward in restricted reserves.

Trading activities

Retail income - retail income is accounted for when the sale takes place.

Mobile Unit income is recognised in the month the unit it is rented.

Events registration — fees are recognised when the event takes place. Any fees received in advance are
deferred until the event takes place. Sales of merchandise are accounted for when the transaction occurs.

Investment Income

Investment income is included when receipt is probable and the amount receivable can be measured
reliably.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 - continued
RESOURCES EXPENDED

Expenditure is recognised when a liability is incurred, when an obligation to transfer economic benefits and
is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under headings that aggregate all costs
relating to that category. Where costs cannot be directly attributed to particular headings they have been
allocated to activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Contractual arangements and
performance related grants are recognised as goods or services supplied. For research grants, the charity
recognises grant payments when a constructive obligation is met, payment is probable, it can be measured
reliably, and there are no conditions attaching to its payment that limit its recognition. The charity has
changed its accounting policy in the recognition of grant liabilities for it PHD studentships, previously only
recognising the liablility up to a review date to recognising the [iability in full.

Expenditure in raising funds are those costs Incurred in attracting voluntary income and those Incurred in
trading activities that raise funds and includes irrecoverable VAT.

Charitable activities include expenditure associated with educational programmes and include both the
direct costs and support costs relating to those activities.

Support costs Include general management, budgeting and accounting, payroll administration, human
resources, information technology, facilities and estates, general administration and health and safety and
are allocated across charitable and fundraising activities under the following categories: Financial
Management, People and Development, information Systems, Facllities and Estates. These costs have
been allocated to activity cost categories on a basis consistent with the use of resources, e.g. allocating
staff costs by the time spent and other costs by usage.

DONATED GOODS AND SERVICES

Danated professional services and donated facilities are recognised as income when the charity has control
over the item, any conditions associated with the donated item have been met, the receipt of economic
benefit from the use by the charity of the item is probable and that economic benefit can be measured
reliably. In accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102), general volunteer time is not recognised.

On receipt, donated professional services and donated facilities are recognised on the basis of the value of
the gift to the charity which is the amount the charity would have been willing to pay to obtain services or
facilities of equivalent economic benefit on the open market, a corresponding amount is then recognised in
expenditure in the period of receipt

TAX

Tenovus Cancer Care is considered 10 pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly,
the charity is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within
categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable
purposes. Profit from the subsidiaries is gift aided to Tenovus Cancer Care.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 - continued
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The cost of any unused holiday entilement Is recognised in the period in which the employee's services are
received. Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the charity is demonstrably
committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

FUND ACCOUNTING

The charity has various types of funds for which it is responsible, and which require separate disclosure.
These are as follows:

Restricted funds -~ these funds are restricted by the donor or appeal for specific purposes. Restricted funds
for capital spend are expended over the life of the assel. Funds restricted by the donor for revenue spend
are held in restricted reserves and funds are matched against expenditure as appropriate.

Designated funds — these are unrestricted funds that have been set aside at the discretion of the Trustees
for particular purposes.

Unrestricted funds — these funds compromise accumulated surpluses and deficits on general funds that are
expendable at the discretion of the Trustees In furtherance of the objects of the charity and that have not
been designated for other purposes.

FIXED ASSETS

Tangible fixed assets costing more than £500 are capitalised and included at cost together with any
incidental costs of acquisition.

Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of tangible fixed assets on a straight-line basis
beginning in month post actual usage over the expected useful economic lives of the assets concerned.
The principle annual rates used for this purpose are;

Leasehold improvements to shops 5 years, 10 years or remaining lease term
Fumniture, fittings and equipment 10%, 15% and 25%

Motor Vehicles 25% - 33.33%

Mobile Support Units 5-10%

Short leasehold premises over the period of the lease

Impairment of fixed assets

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair vaiue less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 - continued

of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is, recognised immediately in income/
(expenditure) for the year, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revaiued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Recognised impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have ceased
to apply. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried in at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intanpible assets acquired separately from a business are recognised at cost and are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired on business combinations are recognised separately from goodwill at the
acquisition date where it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the
asset will flow to the entity and the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably; the intangible asset
arises from contractual or other legal rights; and the intangible asset is separable from the entity.

Amortisation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over
their useful lives applying the following rates:

Software 25%
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

STOCKS

Stocks comprise of merchandise purchased for resale and consumables and are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value and are less any provisions for slow moving stocks. Donated goods for sale in the
Groups' charity shops are not valued.

OPERATING LEASES

Rental costs under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis to the SOFA over the lease term.
INVESTMENTS

Fixed asset investments in quoted shares, traded bonds and similar investments are valued initially at cost
and subsequently at fair value (their market value) at the year end. The same treatment is applied to
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unlisted investments unless fair value cannot be measured reliably in which case it is measured at cost less
impairment.

Investments in subsidiaries are included within the financial statements at cost. A subsidiary is an entity
controlled by the charity. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Investments held for resale or pending their sale and cash and cash equivalents with a maturity date of less
than one year are treated as current asset investments.

CURRENT ASSET INVESTMENTS

The charity has investments which it holds for resale or pending their sale and cash and cash equivalents
with a maturity date less than one year. These include cash on deposit and cash equivalents with a
maturity date of less than one year held for investment purposes rather than to meet short term cash
commitments as they fall due.

They are valued at fair value except where they qualify as basic financial instruments.
CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND

Cash at bank and cash in hand Includes cash and short term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The charity has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 'Basic Financial Instruments' and Section 12
‘Other Financial Instruments Issues' of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments.

Financial instruments are recognised in the charity's balance sheet when the charity becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, with the net amounts presented in the financial statements, when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or to realise the assat and settle the liability simultaneously.

Basic financial assets

Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at
transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction
is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial
assets classified as receivable within one year are not amortised.

Impairment of financial assets

Financlal assets, other than those held at fair value through income and expenditure, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at each reporting date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows have been affected.
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If an asset is impaired, the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. The impairment
loss is recognised in net income/(expenditure) for the year.

If there Is a decrease in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does not
exceed what the carrying amount would have been, had the impairment not previously been recognised.
The impairment reversal is recognised in net income/(expenditure) for the year.

De-recognition of financial assets

Financial assets are de-recognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire

or are settled, or when the charity transfers the financlal asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership to another entity, or if some significant risks and rewards of ownership are retained but contro! of
the asset has transferred to another party that is able to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third

party.
Basic financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including creditors and bank loans are initially recognised at transaction price
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the
present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial liabllities classifled
as payable within one year are not amortised. Debt Instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method.

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of operations from suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment Is due within
one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabllities. Trade creditors are recognised initially
at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

De-recoghnition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the charity’s contractual obligations expire or are discharged or
cancelled.

PENSION COSTS

The charity contributes to a voluntary defined contribution pension scheme for the majority of permanent
employees and provides benefits based on contributions made. The assets of the scheme are hekd in
trustee-administered funds completely independent of the charity's finances. The charity has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions in the event that these plans do not hold sufficient assets
to provide future benefits.

Auto-enrolment for the charity commenced in April 2014 and the charity is complying with its obligations.
FOREIGN EXCHANGE POLICY
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing at the time of the

transaction. Foreign currency balances are transiated into sterling at the exchange rates prevailing at the
balance sheet date. Any resulting gains or losses on exchange are included in the SOFA.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In the application of the charity's accounting policies, the Trustees are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readlly apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future

period

2. DONATIONS & LEGACIES

Unrestricted  Unrestricted Restricted  Restricted 2020 2019
Continulng Discontinued Continuing Discontinued £ £
£ £ £ £
Donations & Gifts 421,854 360,139 24,430 - 806,523 1,292,042
Legacies 1,542,293 - 17,382 - 1,659,675 1,707 852
Trusts & Foundations 10,221 - 143,193 3,308 156,722 112,237
Donated goods &
services 134,781 - - - 134,781 151,149
2,108,249 360,138 185,005 . 3,308 2,657,701 3,263,380
3. CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES
Unrestricted Restricted 2020 2019
£ £ £ £
Welsh Government - 168,079 156,079 205,438
Single Advice Fund - 22,126 22,126 -
- 178,205 178,205 206,438
These are all from continuing activities in the year.
4. OTHER TRADING ACTIVTIES
These are all from continuing activities in the year.
2020 2019
£ £
Shop income 5,021,818 5,332,404
Trading in subsidiaries (4a) 260,925 161,202
Mobile Unit Income 29,088 -
Events 128,294 270,931
Lottery 204,774 213,861
5,978,398

5,734,899
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4a. TRADING OPERATIONS IN SUBSIDIARY

The charity has a trading subsidiary, Tenovus Trading Limited, company number 01157332, a company

limited by guarantee which is incorporated in the UK. The subsidiary sells greeting cards, calendars and

other promotional goods, and covenants all its taxable profits to Tenovus Cancer Care. The subsidiary also
. rents mobile units from the charity for its own use. A summary of its trading results follows.

| | 2020 2019

INCOME & EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT £ £
Turnover 260,925 161,202
Net operating expenses new goods (144,438) (119,790)
Net operating expenses mobile unit (46,822) -
Operating surplus 60,665 41412
Amount covenanted to Tenovus Cancer Care (69,665) (41,412)
Retained in subsidiary | , B ~
A summary of its aggregate assets, liabilities and funds is as follows:

Assets 252,340 76,399
Liabilities (242,489) (66,548)
Funds 9,861 9,851

The charity had another subsidiary, Tenovus Health Limited, company number 08146954. This was a
private limited company incorporated in the UK. which was dissolved in the year.

5. INVESTMENT INCOME

Unrestricted Restricted 2020 2019

£ £ . £ £

Dividend income 114,871 - 114,871 127,728
Interest recelvable 241 - 241 3,738

115,112 - 115,112 131,466

These are all from continuing activitias in the year.

]
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6. EXPENDITURE FOR RAISING DONATIONS LEGACIES AND OTHER

All expenditure on donations and legacies from unrestricted and restricted funds relates
to continuing operations.

Unrestricted Restricted 2020 2018
£ £ £ £
Donations & Gifts (6a) 695,097 2,103 697,200 817,903
Donated goods and services (6b) 134,781 - 134,781 151,149
Legacies and Trusts 163,519 - 163,519 187,850
Lottery v 303,843 - 303,843 202,519
Investment Management Costs 23,793 - 23,793 25,064
1,321,083 2103 1,323.136 1,384,485
6a. DONATIONS & GIFTS Unrestricted  Restricted 2020 2019
£ £ £ £
Staff & other related costs 387,232 2,103 389,335 469,362
Other overhead costs 71,798 - 71,798 138,556
Support costs 236,087 - 236,067 209,985
695,097 2,103 697,200 817,903
6b. DONATED GOODS &  Unrestricted  Restricted 2020 2019
SERVICES £ £ £ £
Publicity 94,414 - 94,414 91,724
Mobile Support Unit equipment & 40,000 - 40,000 56,900
services
Goods & Services 367 - ‘ 367 2,525
134,781 - 134,781 161,149
7. OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES
2020 2019
£ £
Event costs ' 116,088 284,119
Retail shops costs (7a) 4,552,172 4,511,002
Cost of sales on new goods (subsidiary) (note 4a) 144,438 119,789
Mobile Units costs (subsidiary) (note 4a) 46,822 -

4869620 4,914,910
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Unrestricted Restricted 2020 2019
Funds Funds
£ £ £ £
7a. RETAIL SHOP COSTS
Staff & olher related costs 2,139,427 - 2,139,427 2,045,389
Rent, rates & insurance 1,132,267 - 1,132,257 1,132,844
Other costs 357,742 - 357,742 360,161
Utilities 239,453 - 239,453 278,648
Consumables 38,624 - 38,624 28,160
" Repairs & renewals 119,908 - 119,808 166,077
Depreciation 19,607 - 19,607 40,626
Bad debts 35,512 - 35,512 -
Support costs 469,642 - 469,642 459,097
4,562,172 - 4,552,172 4,511,002
8. COST OF CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES
Unrestricted Restricted 2020 2019
Funds Funds
£ £ £ £
8a. GRANTS TO INSTITUTIONAL RESEARCH
ORGANISATIONS
University of Cardiff 421,747 18,382 440,129 149,263
University of Wales Bangor - - - 16.812
Swansea Bay UHLB (Lymphoedema Network Wales) 57,000 - 57,000 -
University of Swansea 37,706 - 37,706 30,200
Velindre Cancer Care 8,535 - 9,535 -
South West Wales Cancer Centre - - - 30.000
University of South Wales - - - 29,966
University of Aberystwyth (9,064) - (8,064) -
Cwm Taf Morgannwg UHLB - - - 8,554
Cardiff & Vale UHB (374) - (374) -
Morriston Hospital (managed by Swansea Bay UHLB) (5.883) - (5,883) -
Princess of Wales (managed by Cwm Taf Morgannwg (590) - (590) -
UHLB)
Direct costs (8ai) 158,863 - 158,863 233,826
Support costs (9) 53,099 - 63,099 40,655
722,039 18,382 740,421 539,276
Unrestricted Restricted 2020 2019
Funds Funds
£ £ £ £
8ai. DIRECT COSTS
Staff & other related costs 87,961 - 87,961 120,453
Other research costs 49,308 - 49,306 42,694
Direct overheads 21,596 - 21,596 70678
158,863 - 158,863 233,825

¥

These are all from continuing activities. The charity recognises expenditure when a constructive obligation
arises. This liability amounted to £597,987 at 31 March 2020 (2018/19: £495,292).
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8b. PATIENT SERVICES Unrestricted  Unrestricted  Restricted 2020 2019
Funds Discontinued Funds £ £
£ £ £
Staff & other related costs 277,967 34,525 400,513 713,005 706,146
Depreciation 348 846 16,360 17,554 18,460
Direct overhead costs 38,560 41,885 29,797 110,322 238,455
Support costs (9) 302,565 34,037 13,007 349,609 277,489
Mablile Support Unit direct costs 263,185 - 308,839 573,024 427,501
Mobile Support Unit suppori costs (9) 157,113 - - 157,113 65,674
. 1,039,738 111,373 769,51 1,920,627 1,733,726
8c. SUPPORT GROUPS
Unrestricted Restricted 2020 2019
Funds Funds £ £
£ £
Staff costs 339,757 14,179 353,936 279,227
Direct overhead costs 17,617 31,587 49,214 96,401
Travel & Subsistence 24,186 - 24,186 23,354
Room hire ‘ 21,725 - 27,725 23,529
Support costs (9) 169,302 , _ 169,302 110,905
678,587 48,776 824,383 833,413
8d. CAMPAIGNS & POLICY '
Unrestrictod Unrestricted Restrictad Restrictad 2020 2019
Funds Funds Funds Funds
Continuing Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
£ £ £ £ £ £
Staff costs 38,864 142,519 - - 181,383 133,674
Direct overhead costs 7.226 33,781 - - 41,007 61,029
Campaign costs - 17.416 - 3,308 20,724 15,807
Support costs (9) 15,009 $5,050 - - 70,059 48,661
61,089 248,768 . 3,308 313,173 269,171
9.SUPPORT COSTS
Other overhead Staff costs Total 2020 Total 2019
£ £ £ £
Retall & Subsidiaries 174,389 342,346 516,735 491,790
Costs of Raising Funds 84,373 165,635 250,008 217,367
Patients Services 117,985 231,624 349,609 277,489
Mobile Support Units §3,022 104,091 157,113 65,674
Support Groups 57,136 112,166 169,302 110,805
Campeigns & Policy 23,643 46,416 70,069 48,661
Research 17,920 35,179 53,089 40,654
Total 528,468 1,037,457 1,565,925 1,252,540

The charity has changed the way it allocates its support costs in the year to allocate all marketing and
communications costs in the year with the charity's head office costs. Unless noted otherwise all costs are
from continuing operations.
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10. STAFF COSTS AND TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION

2020 2019
E £
Wages & salaries 4,677,203 4,678,533
Redundancy & termination payments 73,392 -
Social security costs 368,915 367,199
Other pension costs (note 24) 201,974 175,225
5,321,484 5,220,957
The number of higher paid employees was as follows:

2020 2019

Number Number

£60,001 - £70,000 4

£70,001 - £80,000 )

£80,001 - £80,000

£90,001 - £100,000
£100,000 - £110,000

oy N W
]

The number of higher paid employees for whom retirement benefits are accruing:

2020 2019

Number Number

£60,001 - £70,000 3 4
£70,001 - £80,000 -

£80,001 - £90,000 2 -

£90,001 - £100,000 - -

£100,000 - £110,000 - 1

Pension contributions for higher paid employees are as follows:

2020 2019

Number Number

£60,001 - £70,000 17,946 14,174

£70,001 - £80,000 - -

£80,001 - £80,000 4,994 -

£90,001 - £100,000 - -

£100,000 - £110,000 . 6,189

No Trustee has received any remuneration from the Group during the year (2018/19: £nif). During the year
two Trustees received reimbursement of travel & subsistence £784 (2018/19: £Nil).

Key Management Personnel

The key management personnel of the parent charity comprise the Leadership Team listed on page 24.
The total employee benefits of the charity were £445,958 (2018/19: £489,659).
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11. STAFF NUMBERS

2020 2019
Number Number
Average number of employees (full time equivalent) 205 186
Patient Services — costs allocated to statement of financial
. . 30 28
activities - patient services
Research — costs allocated to statement of financial activities ~ 4 4
research costs
Support Groups — costs allocated to statement of financial
1 10
activities — support groups
Income Generation Department — allocated to statement of
. . 17 17
financial activities —
Head Office — allocated to statement of financial activities 22 22
Campaigns & Policy— allocated to statement of financial activities 4 5
Marketing & Communication - allocated to statement of financial 8 8
activities
Shops ~ allocated to the statement of financial activities 109 102
205 196

12. NET INCOME/ (EXPENDITURE) FOR THE YEAR

As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 2006, the parent company’s income and expenditure
account has not been included in these financial statements.

The net income/ (outgoing) resources for the year are made 2020 2019
up as follows: £ £
Income generated by parent charitable company 8,426,342 9,417,480
Expenditure by parent charitable company (9,589,980) (9,245,189)
Share of net income/ (expenditure) resources generated by 69,665 41,412

subsidiary and covenanted to this company (Note 4a)

(1,093,973) 213,703
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Net incoming resources for the year Is stated after 2020 2019
charging: £ £
Gift Aid income ' 331,179 416,230
Depreciation of tangibles 235,647 201,405
Amortisation of Intangibles 18,094 -
- Auditors’ remuneration — audit fee 12,332 12,750
Land and buildings operating lease costs 1,141,873 1,139,687
- Other operating lease costs 19,513 16,970
Profit/(loss) on disposal of tangible fixed assets (534) 329
13. EXCEPTIONAL CHARGES FOR THE YEAR 2020 2019
£ £
- 750,000

In 2018/19 with regard to the use of Mobile Support Unit 4, the changing landscape of cancer service
provision and misalignment of timescales in Wales meant that we were likely to partner with a private
healthcare company to provide mobile treatment and support in England. A £750,000 exceptional charge
was included within our Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities restricted funds, to recognise our
liability to the Moondance Foundation In accordance with the terms of our original fundraising proposal
which was for an additional Unit for Wales which will be repaid over 2 years. £250,000 of the original £1m
donation remains generously donated to the charity for us to use to support people affected by cancer in
Wales.
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14. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Charity &
Group

Leasehold Motor  Furniture, Mobile Short TOTAL

shop vehicles fittings & Support Units  leasehold
improvements equipment premises
£ £ £ £ £ £

Cost
At 1 April 2019 278,737 32,122 402,098 1,564,363 384,602 2,871,922
Additions 10,253 - 27,434 842,714 - 880,401
Disposals - - (5.061) - - (5.061)
At 31 March 288,990 32,122 424,471 2,407,077 394,602 3,647,262
2020
Depreciation
At 1 April 2019 188,774 32,119 295,150 626,453 273,775 1,416,271
Charge for the
year 19,452 3 34,941 165,324 15,927 235,647
Eliminated on - - (4,627) - - (4,527)
disposal
At 31 March 208,226 32,122 325,564 791,777 289,702 1,647,391
2020
Net Book 80,764 - 98,907 1,615,300 104,900 1,899,871
Value at 31
March 2020
Net Book 89,963 3 106,948 937,910 120,827 1,255,651
Value at 31
March 2019

The additions noted in the year for Mobile Support units reflect Mobile Support Unit 4 which was officially
launched in the year and the redesign costs of Moblle Unit 1.
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15. INTANIGLE FIXED ASSETS

Charity & Group
Software TOTAL
Acquisition Cost
At 1 April 2019 - -
Additions 108,567 108,567
Disposals - -
"At31 March 2020 108,667 108,867
Amortisation
At 1 April 2019 - -
Charge for the year 18,094 . 18,094
Eliminated on disposal - -
TAt31March2020 18,084 18,094
Net Book Value at 31 90,473 ~ 80,473

March 2020

Net Book Value at 31 - R
March 2019

This is the cost of the system bulld and setup in relation to the Dynamics system for use across our
Research and Support Services which was completed and in use during the year.
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2020 2019
£ £
Group & Charity
Fair value at 1 April 2019 4,248,823 4,213,066
Less: disposals at opening book value (1,604,520) (1,311,113)
Add: acquisitions at cost 735,658 1,095,711
Net unrealised investment gains/(losses)
Unrestricted (340,681) 168,361
increase/(decrease) in cash balance (98,894) 92,798
Falr value at 31 March 2020 2,940,386 4,248,823
Split by:
Fixed Asset Investments 2,940,386 4,248,823
Represented by:
Quoted UK Investments
Fixed Interest Stock, UK Goverhment 36,136 44,217
Corporate bond and bond funds 247,981 539,047
Equities 1,819,253 2,533,488
Other Investments 811,437 1,007,586
Cash held as part of investment portfolio 25,579 124,475
Falr value at 31 March 2020 2,940,386 4,248,823
Cost at 31 March 2020 2,995,146 3,930,558

In the year to 31 March 2020 the charity had realised gains of £58,157 (2018/19: £112,013 gain),
unrealised {(losses)/gains of £340,681 (2018/19: (£168,361 gain) and foreign exchange losses of £2,305

(2018/19 £4,451).

At 31 March 2020, 3 (2018/19: 2) individual holding of investments represented more than 5% of the total

camrying value of investments,

16a. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

Investment in Subsidiary

Tenovus Health Limited was dissolved in the year.

Group
2020

2019

Charity
2020 2019
£ £

1

1
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The company's Investments at the balance sheet date include the following:
Tenovus ing Limited
Country of Incorporation England & Wales
Class of share Company Limited by Guarantee
Holding Nil
Principal Activity Trade Activities to support charity
17. STOCKS
Group Charity
2020 2019 2020 2019
£ £ £ £
Greeting cards & merchandise 111,770 39,922 - -
111,770 39,922 - -
18. DEBTORS
Group Charity
2020 2019 2020 2019
Amounts falling due within one year: £ £ £ £
Trade debtors 47,693 44,781 27,077 23,034
Amount due from subsidiaries - - 45,785 62,578
Other debtors 55,852 130,370 55,854 130,369
Prepayments 529,148 1,366,992 529,104 1,359,380
Accrued Income 673,594 535,226 631,809 532,109

19. CREDITORS

Amounts falling due within one year:

Bank overdraft
Trade creditors
Accruals
Deferred income
Other creditors

1,306,285 2,077,369

1,289,639 2,107,480

Group Charity
2020 2019 2020 2019
£ £ £ £
58,681 420,028 58,681 420,028
646,139 317,413 543,380 315,581
763,254 732,186 760,284 728,316
122,780 17,271 46,108 17,271
222,263 574,123 207,970 574,122
1,813,127 2,061,021 1,616,433 2,055,318




Tenovus Cancer Care
Annual Report & Accounts
Year Ending 31* March 2020 59

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 - continued

19. CREDITORS (CONTINUED)
Securlty

The bank overdraft is secured an the Quoted UK Investments.

Other creditors include the liability for repayment of monies to the Moondance Foundation within one year

Group Charity
2020 2019 2020 2019
Amounts falling due after one year: £ £ £ £
QOther creditors 429,829 321,250 429,829 321,250

429,829 321,250 429,829 321,250

Other creditors Include the liability for repayment of monies to the Moondance Foundation and research
commitments due after 1 year. Following discussions with Moondance Foundation they have kindly agreed
to defer the agreed repayment schedule that was due to continue on quarterly basis until February 2021 as
a result of COVID 19 impact on the charity.

Group Charity
DEFERRED INCOME 2020 2019 2020 2019

£ £ £ £
Opening Balance 17,271 97,803 17,271 97,803
Released in the year (99,850) (227,075) (99,850) (227,075)
Deferred in the year 205,369 146,543 128,687 146,543

Closing Balance 122,790 17,271 46,108 17,271
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Group Charity
2020 2019 2020 2019
£ £ £
# Financlal assets measured at fair
value ‘ .
Investments 2,940,386 4,248,823 2,940,386 4.248.824 .
2,940,386 4,248,823 2,940,386 4,248,824
Financlal assets measured at
amortised cost _
Trade debtors 47,693 44,781 27,077 23,034
Other debtor transactions 729,446 665,596 733,458 725,056
Cash 102,242 - 347913 _ 24,113 342,169
879,381 1,058,290 764,648 1,090,259
Financial liabllities measured at
amortised cost
Bank overdraft 58,681 420,028 58,681 420,028
Trade creditors 646,139 317,413 543,390 315,581
Other creditor transactions 1.415,346 1,627,559 1,398,083 1,623,688

2,120,166 2,365,000 . 2,000,164 = 2,359,297
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 - continued
21. FUNDS
Balance at Income Expenditure Investment Trangfers Balance at 31
1 April 2018 gains/ between March
losses Funds 2020
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
General Fund 3,683,657 8,251,083 (8,779,267) (285,363) (193,465) 2,676,645
Deslgnated Funds
Development of Sustainable 125,792 - (4,935) - 120,857
income Streams Fund
Development of Charitable 72,629 - (47,572) - 25,057
Activity
Office Move Fund - - (10,480) - 38,333 27,853
Property Upgrade Fund 73,686 - (30,235) - 46,549 90,000
Total Unrestricted 3,965,764 8,251,083 (8,872,489) (285,363) (108,583) 2,940,412
Restricted
Campaign fund T - 3,308 (3,308) - - -
CST Activity Fund - 13,744 {5,904) - - 7.840
Equipment Fund 17,487 - {3.632) - - 13,855
Mobile Unit 1 Capital Fund 9,242 - {1.411) - (5.929) 1,802
Mobile Unit 1 -Redesign
Fund 89,316 - (13,134) - 107,684 183,866
Mobile Unit 2 Capital Fund 186,325 - (38,550) - - 147,775
Mobile Unit 3 Capital Fund 748,538 - {79,491) - - 669,047
Mobite Unit 2 Running Costs )
Fund - 24,900 (9,385) - - 15,515
Mabile Unit 3 Running Costs
Fund 189,786 27,264 (163,236) - - 53,834
Moondance Fund 250,000 - (250,000) - - -
Research Fund - 19,382 (19,382) - - -
Single Advice Fund - 22,126 (21,014) - - 1,112
Speclfic Area Fund 4,367 5,435 (6,111) - - 3,691
St James Place Fund 8,680 - (8,680) - - -
Support Groups Fund 5,849 94,260 {44,084) - 6,828 62,853
Welsh Govemment - 166,079 (156,079) - - -
Velindre Fund 112,202 - (15,684) - - 86,518
Total Restricted 1,621,792 366,518 (839,085) - _ 108,583 1,257,808
Total Charity 8,677,556 8,617,601 {9,711,574) (285,363) - 4,198,220
Total Subsidiary 9,851 - - - - 9,851
Total Group 5,587,407 8,687,267 (9,781,240) (285,363) - 4,208,071
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 - continued
21. FUNDS (continued)

The group balance sheet also includes non-charitable trading funds of £9,851 (2019: £9,851) held in the
subsidiary undertaking Tenovus Trading Limited on behalf of Tenovus Cancer Care.

Designated Funds

The Development of Charitable Activity Fund represents funds set aside for deliverance of the charity's
objectives. A programme of spending will be drawn up during the next financial year and will be spent by
2021.

The Development of Sustainable income Streams Fund represents an amount used to develop and
maintain sustainable income streams within the charity. The fund will be spent over a 3 year period from a
tallored and robust programme of spend.

The Office Move Fund represents funds set aside to cover the charity’s move to different head office
premises due to the closure of its current offices.

The Property Upgrade Fund represents the amount required to cover anticipated future expenditure on
property dilapidation and equipment at 31™ March 2020.

Restricted Funds

The Campalign Fund represents funding from Maesgwyn Windfarm Community Fund - (Onilwyn ward) for
Health and Wellbeing campaign.

The CST Activity Fund relates to funding received for specific Cancer Support Team activity from MAPS
Benevolsnt Fund and from donations from our supporters.

The Equipment Fund represents a legacy for the purchase of medical equipment.

The Mobile Support Unit 1 Capital and Running Fund represents funding to be applied on capital build and
running costs on Mobile Support Unit 1.

The Mobile Support Unit 1 capital redesign represents funding from Major Donors and trusts which has
been restricted for the redesign of Mobile Support Unit 1 to allow full disabled access.

The Mobile Support Unit 2 Capital Fund represents funding to be applied on the capital build on Mobile
Support Unit 2 from Welsh Government, Rank Foundation, Walk the Walk, The David Hammond Charitable
Trust and Wolfson Foundation.

The Mobile Support Unit 2 Running Costs fund represents funding to be applied on Mobile Support Unit 2
running costs from The Hospital Saturday Fund, The Caron Keating Foundation, The Pink Ribbon
Foundation, The Atlantic Foundation and Groundwork.

The Mobile Support Unit 3 Capital and Running Fund represents funding to be applied on the capital build
and running costs on Mobile Support Unit 3 from Simon Gibson Charitable Trust and James Tudor
Foundation.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 - continued

21. FUNDS (continued)

The Moondance Foundation Fund represents monies to further our work in Wales excluding any research
expenditure.

The Research Fund represents funding for to be spent on research activities.

The Single Advice Fund represents grant funding from the Citizens Advice Bureau in relation Support Line,
Choir and Free Wills services.

The St James's Place Foundation Fund represents funding for a Support Line Nurse.

The Specific Area Fund represents funding to be applied in specific areas within Wales.

The Support Groups fund represents funding received for use on specific support groups, including Rhyl
Flats Community Benefit Fund (Conwy Borough Council Area), Welsh Church Act Fund Cardiff & Vale,
RCT & Swansea, The Oakdale Trust, G M Morrison's Foundation, The D'Oyly Carte Charitable Trust,
Hartsheath Trust and various Groundwork (Tesco scheme) grants

The Velindre Fund is to be applied at the Cancer Information Centre, Velindre from the Lynch Estate.

The Welsh Government Fund represents funding for Front Line Advice Services.

Transfers

Transfers are made to cover depreciation that is charged on assets bought with restricted funds to reflect

the capital element. Transfers are also made to cover spend where Tenovus Cancer Care is match funding
the project.



Tenovus Cancer Care

Annual Report & Accounts
Year Ending 31" March 2020

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 - continued

Comparative Reserves
Balance at Income  Expenditure Investment Transfers  Balance at 31
1 April gains/losses between March
Charity 2018 Funds 2019
£ £ £ £ £
£
Unrestricted
General Fund 3,276,949 8,807,073 {8.645,227) 270,741 (25,879) 3,683,657
Designated Funds
Properly Upgrade Fund 60,601 - {31,815) - 45,000 73,686
Devatopment of 133,068 - (7.276) - 125,792
Sustainable Income
Streams Fund .
Development of 119,269 - (46,840) - 72,629
Charitable Activity o _
Total Unrestricted 3,589,887 8,807,073 (8,731,056 270,741 19,121 3,955,764
8)
Restricted
Innovation Fund 6,073 - (6,073) - - -
PhD Fund 27,711 - (27,711) - - -
St James's Place 9,850 34,000 (35,170) - - 8,680
Foundation
Welsh Govemment - 205,438 (205,438) - - -
Boumemouith Hospital 19,121 - - - {19,121) -
Fund
Specific Area Fund 5,043 - (676) - - 4,367
Moabile Support Unit 2 - 230,838 - (44,513) - - 186,326
Capital Fund
Support Groups - 16,184 {10,335} - - 6,849
Mobile Support Unit 1 - 13,242 - (4,000) - - 9,242
Capital Fund
Mobile Support Unit 1 — 75,000 5,000 (80,000) - - -
Running
CST Activity Fund - 24,376 (24,376) - - .
Velindre Fund 164,247 - (52,045) - - 112,202
Equipment Fund 21,416 - (3,929) - - 17,487
Mobile Support Unit 3 - 630,684 421,447 (81,030) - (771,315) 189,786
Running
Mobile Support Unit 3 — . - (22,717) - 771,315 748,538
Capital
Mabite Support Unit 1 50,000 39,316 - - - 89,316
Refurbishment Fund
Campaign Fund - 23,144 (23,144) - - .
Research Fund - 2,704 {2.704) - - -
Mobife Support Unit4 1,000,000 - (750,000) - (250,000) -
Fund
Moondance Foundation 250,000 250,000
Fund
Total Restricted 2,253,225 771,609 (1.383,921) - (19,121) 1,621,792
Total Charity 5,843,112 9,578,682 {10,114,979) 270,741 - 5,577,556
Total Subsidiary T 9851 9,851
Yotal Group 5,852,963 9,578,682 {10,114,979) ~ 270,741 - 5,587,407
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 - continued

22. ANALYSIS OF FUND BALANCES BETWEEN THE NET ASSETS

Charity
Fixed assets

Investments

Net assets/
(liabllities)

Group
Fixed assets

Investments
Net current

assets/
(liabilities)

General Funds

£
984,061
2,940,386

(1,247,802)

2,676,645

984,061
2,940,386

(1,237,951)

2,686,496

23. ANALYSIS OF NET FUNDS

Net cash analysed in the

balance sheet

Cash at bank and in hand

Overdraft

Net funds

Designated Restricted Funds Total
Funds 31 March 2020
£ £ £
- 1,006,283 1,980,344
- - 2,940,386
263,767 251,525 (732,510)
263,767 1,257,808 4,198,220
- 1,006,283 1,990,344
- . 2,940,386
263,767 251,525 (722,859)
263,767 1,257,808 4,208,071
1 April 2019 Cash flows 31 March
2020
£ £ £
347,913 (245,671) 102,242
(420,028) 361,347 (68,681)

(72,115)

115,676

43,561
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 - continued
24. PENSION COSTS

The pension cost represents contributions pald by the charity to the Tenovus Cancer Care Group Personal
Pension Plan, a defined contribution scheme. During the year membership of the Pension Plan was offered
to all the charity’s employees subject to certain restrictions. The charity's contribution amounted to
£197,200 (2018/19; £170,545). The contribution rates ranged between 2% and 7% (2018/19: 2% and 7%).
At the year-end there was £48,893 outstanding (2018/19: £42,014).

The charity also contributes to the NHS pension scheme for one nurse. The scheme is an unfunded,
defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, general practices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of the Secretary of State. As a consequence, it is not possible for the charity to identify its share of
the underlying scheme assets and liabllities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as a defined
contribution scheme and the cost of the scheme is equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the
accounting period. The total employer contribution payable in the year was £4,774 (2018/19: £4,680).

25. COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

The company is limited by guarantee whereby the llability of each member is limited to £1. As at 31 March
2020 there were 11 members.

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year Tenovus Cancer Care acted as an agent and collected monies totalling £146,526 (2018/19:
£115,234) on behalf of its wholly owned trading subsidiary Tenovus Trading Limited. The charity also
recharged costs totalling £46,822 and overheads to Tenovus Trading totalling £47,112 (2018/19: £32,703).
At the year end the Tenovus Cancer Care was owed £45,795 (2018/19: £61,745) from Tenovus Trading
Limited.

During the year the charity recelved donations totalling £1,186 (2018/19: £1,440) from Trustees. These
donations were received without any conditions.

27. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2020 the charity had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

Other Land & Buildings
2020 2018 2020 2018
£ £ £ £
Expiring within one year 32,044 16,970 1,001,680 980,254
Expiring between two and five 28,625 20,642 2,030,096 2,524,482
years
Expiring in over five years - - 548,640 551,973

60,669 37,612 3,580,416 4,056,709
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 - continued

28. CONTINGENT ASSETS

In accordance with the SORP 2015 the charity has recognised legacies when it is probable that it will be
received. An agent is employed to notify the charity of bequests and a system of monitoring ensures that
the legacy Is tracked until receipt.

At the year end the charity had been notified of 36 legacies (2018/19: 56) which had not met all of the
criteria for income recognition. These totalled approximately £946,300 (2018/19: £1,408,108) including 4
material legacies estimated at £552,000 (2018/19: £675,000:(5)).

29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2020 the charity had the following capital commitments:

2020 2019
£ £
Mobile Support Unit 1 - 178,758

30. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

As with other organisations in the sector the Covid 19 pandemic Is having a significant impact on the
current trading activity of the charity. Actions have been taken in mitigation via a crisis management plan
which formed part of the charity's business continuity arrangements. This plan has not impacted on the
charity's abllity to operate as a going concern and required no significant adjustment to the financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2020.
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30. Consolidated S t of Financial Activities for the year ended 31.March 2019-(incorporating income and expenditure account and statement of recognised gains and
losses)
Note - Unrestricted Unrestricted Restricted | Restricted Total
' _ Funds Funds Funds. | Funds 2018
. Continuing | Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
Operations Operations Operations ‘Operations
£ £ £ £ £
INCOME & ENDOWMENTS
FROM:
Donations & Legacies 2 2,345,758 351,451 543,027 23,144 3,263,380
Charitable Activities 3 - - 205,438 - 205,438
Other Trading Activities 4 5,978,398 - - - 5,978,398
Investments 5 131,466 - - - 131,466
Other 1 - - - - -
TOTAL INCOME 8,455,622 . 351,451 748,465 23,144 9,678,682
EXPENDITURE ON:
Raising Funds:
Donations & Legacies 6 1,384,485 - - - 1,384,485
Other Trading Activities 7 4,914,910 - - - 4,914,910
Cost of charitable activities:
Grants to research 8a 502,787 - 36,488 - 539,275 |
organisations :
Patient Services 8b 1,013,661 156,110 563,954 . - 1,733,725
Support Groups 8c 523,078 - 10,335 - 533,413
Campaigns & Policy 8d 40,686 195,341 - 23,144 259,171
TOTAL EXPENDITURE: 8,379,607 351,451 610,777 23,144 9,364,979
NET INCOME/EXPENDITURE 76,016 - 137,688 - 213,703

before Gains/(Losses)
exceptional charges

and




Tenovus Cancer Care
Annual Report & Accounts
Year Ending 31" March 2020 69

Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 March 2019 (incorporating income and expenditure account and
statement of recognised gains and losses) continued-

Net gains/(losses) on 18 270,374 - -
investments
Exceptional Charges 1.3 - - (750,000) (750,000)

270,374

NET INCOME/EXPENDITURE ' 346,389' . (612,312). : (265,923) |
Transfers between funds 20 19,121 - (19,121) - .|

OTHER RECOGNISED
GAINS/(LOSSES)

Gains/(Losses) on disposal of fixed. | 14 367 - - - 367
assets
NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS 365,877 - {631,433) - (265,556)

| RECONCILIATION IN FUNDS

Fund balances brought forward | 20,21 3,699,738 - 2,253,226 -1 5,852,963
-at 1 April 2018 .

Fund balances carried forward 20,21 3,965,615 - 1,621,792 - 6,587,407
at 31 March 2019

The loss for the year for Companies Act purposes comprises the net income/(expenditure) for the year of (£265,923) -(2017/18: £599,805
gain), with an additional gain of £367 (2017/18: £3,380 loss) on disposal of fixed assets giving -a net loss of (265,556) (2017/18: £586,425
gain). There s no tax payable on any of the activities.

The notes on pages 34-57 form part of these financial statements.
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We wanted to thank
Community and Corporate Supporters 2019/20

Admiral

Allens Printers

Asda Green Token Schemes
Asbri Golf

Barratt Homes

Beauty Advance Clinic

Berry Smith LLP

Bipsync

Baldwins

BT Directory Enquiries

Ciir Colin Hardie & Gwenda Hardie - Mayor of St Asaph to May 2019

Concrete Structures & Floors
Co-op Community Fund
Cyclone Blue

Davies Homes

Dragons Rugby

Dragon Signs

Farmers Arms Church Village
Ferrier Hart Thomas
GoCompare Ltd.

Hugh James

Huntleigh Healthcare
Hutchings & Thomas

John Lewis Cardiff

Kinetic Cubed

Lampeter Round Table
Llanederyn Post Office
Llanishen Police

Medi Wales

Mermaid Quay

Merthyr South Wales Ltd
Mint Velvet

Moel Eilio Race - Jayne Lloyd
Morrisons Llanishen
Nathaniel Cars

National Eisteddfod

N-ergy

NFU Mutual

North Wales Police

Open University Wales
Persimmon Homes Community Fund
Propel Finance

Rhys Davies Transport

RLE Law

Rotary in Southern Wales
Royal Welsh Agricultural Society
RPM Shopfronts
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Santander Bank Cardiff
Sayers Amusements

Sears Seating

Sheppards Pharmacy
Spindogs

Tesco Bags of Help

Tesco Extra Pontypridd

The Greyhound Public House
The National Botanic Garden of Wales
Thomas Recruitment

Thornhill Crematorium

Tiny Rebel

Traveline Cymru

V12 Retail Finance

Vale Europe

Watkin Jones Community Fund
Western Power Distribution

Charitable Trusts and Funders 2019/20

Ashley Family Foundation

Bernard Sunley Charitable Foundation

British Society for Immunology

Church in Wales Act Fund - Cardiff and The Vale of Glamorgan Unitary Authorities
Church in Wales Act Fund - City of Swansea
Church in Wales Act Fund - Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council
Forest Hill Charitable Trust

G M Morrison Charitable Trust

Garfield Weston Foundation

Hartsheath Charitable Trust

Hospital Saturday Fund

James Tudor Foundation

Maesgwyn Community Benefit Fund (Onllwyn ward)
Moondance Foundation

Myristica Trust

National Lottery Community Fund - West Midlands region
Next Retail Foundation

Pink Ribbon Foundation

Rhyl Flats Community Benefit Fund (Conwy)

Roche

Simon Gibson Charitable Trust

St James's Place Charitable Foundation

Sylvia Waddilove Foundation UK

Tesco Bags of Help Centenary Grants

The Albert Hunt Trust

The Atlantic Foundation

The Austin And Hope Pilkington Trust

The Caron Keating Foundation

The D'Oyly Carte Charitable Trust

The Ed Evans Foundation

The Florence Shute Millennium Trust
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The Farest Hill Charitable Trust

The G C Gibson Charitable Trust

The Gisela Graham Foundation

The Green Hall Foundation

The Gwendoline and Margaret Davies Charity
The Hamer Charitable Trust

The Hoover Foundation

The Mary Homfray Charitable Trust

The Michael and Anna Wix Charitable Trust
The Oakdale Trust

The Waterloo Foundation

Walk the Walk

Welsh Government

Friends of Tenovus Cancer Care Groups
Aberdare
Abergavenny

Barry

Barry Buddies
Blackwood

Bridgend

Cardiff South
Cowbridge

Crofty
Letterston/Treletert
Llandeilo & Dinefwr
Llandudno

Llandybie

Llanidloes

London

Maesteg

Merthyr Tydfil
Morriston & Llangyfelach
Pembrey & Burry Port
Penparc

Pontypridd

Port Talbot

Radyr & Morganstown
Rhiwbina

Ruthin & Denbigh
Sutton

Swansea

Tenby

Tenovus Cancer Care Staff
Tonna

Tugsticular

Wrexham

Patrons and celebrity supporters

A sincere thank you to all of our Patrons and celebrity supporters for their support in 2019/20.



